
 OLYMPIC REGION CLEAN AIR AGENCY 
 2940 LIMITED LANE NW 
 OLYMPIA WA 98502 
 
Regular Meeting November 14, 2018 

10:00 am 
______________________________________________________________________ 

Be courteous – Please silence all cell phones 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA (action item) 
 (Ask for any corrections, additions/omissions) 
   
3. CHAIR REPORT 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
5. CONSENT AGENDA (action item) 
 

1. Minutes of Regular Meeting, October 10, 2018 
2. Expenditures and Disbursements – October 5, 2018 – November 6, 2018 

 
6. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
1. Update on Gas Station Rule 
2. Review Penalty Worksheets – Asbestos and Demolition (action item) 
3. 10-year look- Employee Changes 

 
7. NEW BUSINESS 

 
1. Federal Regulation-adopt by reference (action item) 
2. Resolution 2018-277 - Small Public Works & Consultants (action item) 

 
8. DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 

1. Compliance Program Update (Robert Moody, Compliance Manager) 
2. Engineering Program Update (Mark Goodin, Engineering Manager) 

3. Air Quality Program Update (Odelle Hadley, Senior Air Monitoring Technician) 

4. Education and Outreach (Dan Nelson, Public Information Officer) 

5. Finance/Administrative Update (Lynn Harding, Administrative Services Manager) 

6. Executive Director’s Report (Fran McNair, Executive Director) 

 
9. GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
 
10. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 To discuss any matter suitable for Executive Session under RCW 42.30.110 
 
11. ADJOURN 



 

 

Page 1 of 4 

 

 OLYMPIC REGION CLEAN AIR AGENCY 
2940 Limited Lane NW 

Olympia, Washington 98502 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
 

October 10, 2018 
 

Members present:  Cynthia Pratt, City of Lacey (Vice Chair) 
   Joan Cathey, City of Tumwater 

Kristina Hollatz in for Wes Cormier, Grays Harbor County 
   Lisa Ayers, Pacific County 

Terri Drexler, Mason County 
John Hutchings, Thurston County 
 

Members absent: Jim Cooper, City of Olympia (Chair) 
   Randy Johnson, Clallam County  

Kate Dean, Jefferson County 
 
Legal Counsel: Julie Carignan of Law, Lyman, Daniel, Kamerrer and Bogdanovich 
 
Staff Present:  Fran McNair, Executive Director; Mike Shults, Compliance Supervisor; 

Mark Goodin, Engineering Manager; Odelle Hadley, Air Monitoring 
Supervisor; Dan Nelson, Public Information Officer; Lynn Harding, 
Administrative Services; and Debbie Moody, Office Manager/Recorder 

 
Pratt called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m.  Pratt noted Cooper was absent however his backup 
person should be arriving.  Pratt asked for approval of the Agenda.  Ayers moved approval of the 
Agenda. The motion was seconded and carried unanimously. 
 
CHAIR REPORT 
 
There were no items for Chair Report. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There were no public comments. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Pratt asked for approval of the Consent Agenda. Ayers moved approval of the Consent Agenda. 
The motion was seconded and carried unanimously. 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
Review Penalty Worksheets – General and AOP 
 
McNair noted Mike Shults is in for R. Moody. We have 6 total penalty worksheets, two were done in 
September, we have two for today and we will bring the final two to the Board in November. 
 
Shults explained the General Penalty Worksheet covers those violations that don’t fit in the other 
categories (woodstove, outdoor burning, etc.). Basically, Shults stated, our smaller registered 



 

 

Page 2 of 4 

 

sources will fall under this worksheet. Shults explained we are hoping to align all six of the 
worksheets with regards to formatting and the general questions, while each of them will have 
specific questions depending on the type of violation. Shults went over the questions and responses 
of the General Worksheet. Shults did note the higher points associated with nuisance issues, 
explaining nuisances are labor intensive and typically take several site inspections, therefore we 
assign a higher points value. McNair also noted we only go back 5 years on violations. If the 
violation is older than 5 years, it isn’t counted on the multiplier. After review of the General 
Worksheet, Drexler asked how staff would know if the violator had been informed by another 
agency (question 7). Shults explained we do work closely with other entities (fire departments, 
police, L&I, building depts, etc.) if they have been in contact with them and if they had notified them 
of the requirements. 
 
Shults went over the questions and response of the AOP Worksheet. Shults did note the nuisance 
question is also on this worksheet and does receive higher points for the same reasons. Shults did 
note several questions didn’t change, but we did add some clarity to a few. 
 
Ayers asked if, after all is said and done, will these worksheets result in an increase in penalties in 
general, due to the new structure? Shults explained we use old violations to run through the new 
worksheets and there were no dramatic increases or decreases with our final products. 
 
Drexler moved approval of the General and AOP Penalty Worksheets. The motion was seconded 
and carried unanimously. 
 
McNair did note the last 2 worksheets (asbestos and demolition) will be brought before the Board in 
November. 
 
DIRECTORS REPORT 
 
Compliance Program Update 
 
Shults stated the compliance team has completed interviews for the open inspector position and if 
references check out, we will be making an offer soon. Our AOP source inspection have all been 
completed for the year, Shults noting the deadline for those inspections was the end of September. 
Shults briefly went over the reports pointing out we were still getting some odor complaints from 
Ocean Protein and marijuana facilities.  
 
Engineering Program Update 
 
Goodin reminded the Board he had given a presentation about air current incinerators at the last 
meeting. This topic was also discussed at the permit writers quarterly meeting and, across the 
state, Goodin noted, there wasn’t an agency who wasn’t opposed to approving air curtain 
incinerators in any capacity. Goodin reminded the Board we had a company wanting to place one of 
the incinerators in our jurisdiction and we will be telling them not to submit an application as it will 
not meet the standards and we would not be able to approve the permit. 
 
Drexler wanted to understand that the decision that this is not a technology we can approve is a 
decision made by staff and not the Board, is that correct? McNair stated that is correct. Drexler 
asked if there was any discussion regarding using the incinerators for mobile outdoor burning 
projects. Goodin explained the permit writers did discuss it and every one of his peers and the 
agencies were against the use of these incinerators. McNair did add that ORCAA is not closed to 
the idea. Drexler noted she appreciated that ORCAA would still consider it in place of open burning. 
 



 

 

Page 3 of 4 

 

Goodin also wanted to inform the Board that McKinley Paper (previously known as Nippon) did 
submit a renewal application. They are currently closed, which is part of the reason there is so 
much woody debris building up around the area. Goodin did state, the renewal application means 
they should be up and running, consuming biomass debris, in about a year and a half. 
 
Air Quality Program Update 
 
Hadley went over the September air quality, noting almost all the sites began to approach 
moderate, due to a bit of wildfire smoke moving through the area. Ozone season is coming to an 
end Hadley stated. We did have a couple of days of higher readings, one nearly hit 70ppb, which 
we assume is also due to wildfires.  Monitoring continues to work with our interns on the Community 
Toxics Grant. We are gearing up for the Mason County Saturation Study and we made several 
unplanned trips to Cheeka Peak to do some repair work. Hadley stated she also attended Air 
Sensors International Conference in California, which covers the personal air monitors, such as 
purple air (however they didn’t attend the conference). Hadley added we also continue to analyze 
our purple air data. 
 
Education and Outreach 
 
Nelson stated burn season has begun and permitting started 10 days ago. On the first day, we were 
averaging 1 permit every 4 minutes and we now have about 700 active residential permits in 
Thurston County. We have only had 7 invalid permits, meaning they applied in a no burn area. 
Nelson explained we had some issues with DNR and burn ban notification this past summer and 
will be working with them to hopefully have a more unified message and better communication. 
Now that burn season is underway, we are seeing an uptick in applications for the changeout 
program. We have allocated about $35,000 of the $125,000 thus far. 
 
Finance/Administrative Update 
 
Harding stated the Finance Committee met this morning and went over, in detail, the Fiscal Year 
end for 2018. Harding stated we did end with a $66,000 addition to our general fund. We also went 
over the first quarter for Fiscal Year 2019, Harding continued. Harding went over a few line items 
noting we have received 28% of our revenues as of the end of September and are at 19% of our 
expenditures. Harding briefly went over the ending fund balance sheet, noting we have increased 
the database reserve to $75,000. 
 
Harding explained we had received word from Thurston County we are no longer going to be part of 
their Small Works Roster as they are looking at moving to MRSC for their needs. We are also 
looking to move that direction as well, however there are some questions we have and once we get 
the answers, we will get a resolution to the Board to reflect that change, along with a policy update. 
 
We did receive final premium costs from AWC, Harding noted. The new rates are within our budget 
and we have also received the 2% eWellCity award, which will help in keeping the costs down as 
well. 
 
Executive Director’s Report 
 
McNair stated she had received some preliminary legislation regarding changes to PCHB’s rules, 
noting it isn’t good legislation for small agencies such as ours.  
 



 

 

Page 4 of 4 

 

We do think we will have a new inspector starting November 1, once we check references. We do 
have a 2nd person that may or may not start in January, McNair explained. The workload has been 
heavy for our inspectors and it will be great to have the new employee(s) on board to help. 
 
We will be bringing the first quarter report for our Strategic Plan to the November meeting, McNair 
stated. McNair did note she will be attending the National Association of Clean Air Association 
(NACAA)meeting in Cleveland.  
 
Drexler reminded McNair that Cooper had suggested we get a meeting Hilary Franz regarding 
DNR’s role on how to handle excess biomass. McNair was under the impression Cooper was taking 
the lead. McNair stated she would follow up with him. 
 
GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
There were no items for the good of the order 
  
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There was nothing further from the Board. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 11:13 a.m. 
 
CERTIFICATION 
 
I hereby certify this is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the meeting of the ORCAA Board of  
Directors held on October 10, 2018, in Olympia, Washington. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________________  ________________________________ 
Francea L. McNair, Executive Director   Jim Cooper, Chair 
Olympic Region Clean Air Agency   ORCAA Board of Directors    
 
DATED: _______________________________ 



����� ������	
��� 
���������
������	
��	�� ���
�����	���� 
 
 
������ �
!
�������� "#$%&'(
�� )�*+���,���������-
!
������.� "#$%&'(
..
/01#234015
�������.!6%047 )�+�..,��83$%
!
9%,
:0('
;(<1=>'( ;,?,
8##%31$015
?@<(5'
 )-��,��ABACDD
E
ABACFG H<I(%22
 )��*+-. ,�����-+
��� +
��.. J'1'>0$= )�-+.��,��������.*
!
�������� K%L'M&'(
� )��+*..,���������. K%L'M&'(
� )�+-��,��N�	��
OPQ���R	���
N�R
���R��� STUVWXYZ[\]��������
̂R	�
_����	
�̀����
a��
b��	���
c����
�a
�R���	��
b��	R�̀[

. ��
d0M0$'4
d<1'
K:+
"2IMe0<
:8

 *-�.!�-��
c����
�QQ��f��
�a
OPQ���R	���W
�Rg������	W
���
�R��
N���a��hiJ9j;;kl
m"n
;ok
Hknj"lp�	�g��
YW
]ZTU
	����̀�
q�f��g��
\W
]ZTU"dr9Hj?
nksj"K
?dk8K
8jn
8skK?r



������� �	
� �	��� �	��������
 �����
�������� �������� ������ ����!�"�#$% ��&�� &'(��)���������� �������� ������ �*+,�-%,,�.�/0�-%, ��&�� ��&)�(�������� �������� �#1/�,����2 %��#1)'�3-/) ��&�� ���)�&�������� �������� �#1/�,����2 %��#1)'�3-/) ��&�� ��4)4������(�� �������� 5-�0#-!��+� %6 ��&�� ���)�&�����(�� �������� 7%��6�1%-��#8�9/# #:! ��&�� �'4��)44�����(�& �������� 9�,�%6-�;%,%�6/0�<6#+�'�3-/) ��&�� �'4��)�������(�� �������� =%>�9? ��&�� ��)�������(�( �������� <6�!,�@�62#6��#)�"0%6�88A,�7%��6�1%-� ��&�� �4)�������(�4 �������� B�2#6�C�3->+,�6�%, ��&�� �'(��)�������(�� �������� B�D'�B!1�-'�7�-�% ' ��&�� &'��4)&������(�� �������� �C��� %�-�"D%%� ��&�� �'&��)�������(�� �������� .�6E�FAG%�  ��&�� 4��)�������(�� �������� B%.�!�3-/HI�/�8�/�7�,�#,� ��&�� �&)44�����(�� �������� I+:%��"#+->�9-%6:! ��&�� ���)�(�����(�� �������� "�2�#�9-$�6#-1%-�� '�BB� ��&�� �(&)�������(�& �������� ;+�0�"/0+1�E%6 ��&�� ��)((�����(�� �������� "+-6�,%�I%,��.�-�:%1%-�'�3-/) ��&�� ��)�������(�( �������� J%6�K#-�L�6% %,,'�*%  %$+% ��&�� ��()�������(�4 ���&&��� 5�6�@�-> %6,�3-/) ��&�� 4�4)�(�����(�� ���&&��� B�,��5!%6, ��&�� �()�������(�� ���&&��� *�-E�#8�51%6�/� ��&�� �'���)&4�����(�� ���&&��� �57;9�3-/) ��&�� &'���)�������(�� ���&&��� M%66��76%? %6 ��&�� &�)�������(&� ���&&��� �# �#-�<6�! ��&�� ��()�������(&� ���&&��� M+8�,�N-�$%6,��! ��&�� �4)�������(&& ���&&��� O6�,��-��@#  ��K ��&�� ��)�4�����(&� ���&&��� 3-�%61%>��)-%�'�3-/) ��&�� &��)�&�����(&( ���&&��� .#+-���-�.�,��L��%6 ��&�� (�)(������(&4 ���&&��� F !1����=�6%� �/%�"+�� !�3-/) ��&�� �'&��)�������(&� ���&&��� I�/�8�/��#+-�!�7%��6�1%-� ��&�� &��)�������(&� ���&&��� M0%�9$%6:6%%-�"���%��#  %:% ��&�� �'���)��5+�#�M6�-,8%6 �������� M0+6,�#-��#+-�!�M6%�,+6%6A,�F88�/% ��&�� 4(�)��4�4�&&H4�4��� �������� "� �6�%,�C�*%-%8��, ��&�� �(�'���)�4�����(&� ������� 5�6�@�-> %6,�3-/) ��&�� &��)&&�����(&� ������� ���!�#8�F !1��� ��&�� ���)&������(�� ������� �#1/�,����2 %��#1)'�3-/) ��&�� ��4)�������(�� ������� 5 �61��%-�%6'�3-/) ��&�� ���)&������(�& ������� 9�,�%6-�;%,%�6/0�<6#+�'�3-/) ��&�� �'��()�������(�� ������� =6�-/%��B)�./G��6 ��&�� ��4)�4�����(�( ������� .#+-���-�.�,��L��%6 ��&�� &�)�(�����(�4 ������� �C��� %�-�"D%%� ��&�� 4��)�������(�� ������� G#6�0D%,��� %�-�5�6�5:%-/! ��&�� &��)�������(�� ������� F !1����=�6%� �/%�"+�� !�3-/) ��&�� 4��)�������(�� ������� IN7�P��#8�� �  �1��#+-�! ��&�� ���)�������(�� ������� "+-,%��5�6�3-/#6�#6��%> ��&�� &'(��)�������((� ������� M�:,�5D�6>,�C�"�%/�� ��%, ��&�� ��)�������((� ������� J%6�K#-�L�6% %,,'�*%  %$+% ��&�� ��4)4������(�&J ������� 9�,�%6-�;%,%�6/0�<6#+�'�3-/) ��&�� H�'4��)�������((& ������� 9�,�%6-�;%,%�6/0�<6#+�'�3-/) ��&�� �'4��)��M#�� ���'(4�)�&

QRST�U��VWXUQY��RW�Y��UV��XWY�S&�(��B�1��%>�B�-%�GL'�F !1����L5����4�&H�4���0%/E�;%:�,�%6�#8�9?�%->��+6%,'�7�,2+6,%1%-�,'��->�L�6%�M6�-,8%6,"N*.3MM97�=F;�M@9�I9;3F7F/�#2%6�4'�&�����06#+:0�G#$%12%6��'�&���



�

����������	�
������

�	����������������������
���  !"#!$�%&'()�*!+',)-�$.&/01!!)0�(.&�)1!�203!0).0�'+%�4!5.,#)#.+6�������������  .3!&)�7..%-8�9.5*,#'+:!�7'+';!&�<=>?@�A=BCD>�?8�!E)6��?>8�&.3!&)65..%-F.&:''6.&;�
G�
�
�����������	��� �H����I�J��IK�L�MNOJ���I���PO�M�P��IQQ����R������
����
����	��� PISS���L����MJN�I���PO�M�P��IQQ�����PH��IN��NP�N�IMJ�J���TOPO�M�Q�MITPK�U��VNH��PN�IN�Q��N�MP�JR�����
��������W
�� X#),!������������������������������������������������������������������������Y';!�Z�6[\55'&-�.(�:1'+;!0�).�)1!�203!0).0�$.&/01!!)������������=]6 Ê#0)#+;�203!0).0�:#"#,�*!+',)-�$.&/01!!)��������������������_CA=6Y&.*.0!%�203!0).0�:#"#,�*!+',)-�$.&/01!!)������������������>CD_6[\55'&-�.(�4!5.,#)#.+�$.&/01!!)��������������������������������̀������������������������A6 Ê#0)#+;�4!5.,#)#.+�:#"#,�*!+',)-�$.&/01!!)���������������BC�?>6Y&.*.0!%�4!5.,#)#.+�:#"#,�*!+',)-�$.&/01!!)��������������C�]����
��	�a����b�����
��������� cdefeghi�jklmnhg�ie�meo�pqfljo�okh�rsinhot�a�

��
��������W
�����	�	
��  .3!&)�7..%-8�9.5*,#'+:!�7'+';!&8�$#,,�*&!0!+)�)1!�#+(.&5')#.+	MP��JuLPO�M2)�)1!�[!*)!53!&�'+%�v:).3!&�w.'&%�5!!)#+;08�0)'((�*&!0!+)!%�*&.*.0!%�:1'+;!0�).�(.\&�*!+',)-�$.&/01!!)06�X1#0�5.+)1�0)'((�$#,,�*&!0!+)�)1!�203!0).0�'+%�4!5.,#)#.+�*!+',)-�$.&/01!!)06�20�+.)!%�')�)1!�*&!"#.\0�w.'&%�5!!)#+;08�)1!&!�'&!�0#5#,'&#)#!0�$#)1#+�!':1�.(�)1!�*!+',)-�$.&/01!!)08�0\:1�'0x�#+:,\%#+;�)1!�0'5!�#+0)&\:)#.+0�.+�!':1�$.&/01!!)y�)1!�.&%!&�.(�)1!�z\!0)#.+0�#0�0#5#,'&�':&.00�',,�0#E�$.&/01!!)0y�!':1�z\!0)#.+�#0�+\53!&!%�).�0#5*,#(-�'�&!(!&!+:!�).�'�0*!:#(#:�z\!0)#.+y�'�5\,)#*,#!&�$'0�\0!%�(.&�"#.,').&0�$#)1�*&!"#.\0�



�

�������	�
	��������	�������	���	���	�
	���	���������	����	����
���	��	��		������	������	�	������	�����	��	�����	
��	��

	��	� ����	��	���	 ������	��	����������	!�	���	�""��	��#��	������	�
	���	���$�����	���	����	���	��	� �	������������	�������	���	����	�
	"�� ����	����	��	���	���	%	������	�����	&��	'� �����	���	��	(���	""�� �	���	����	��	��������	��	���	
�����	
��	���	���$������



�

��������	
�������������	����������	�������������	����������������	����������	�	������ �!"#$ �%%&�!' �(' &�)*+'&%+�",�-',)'#.�/01�02//3���%�' 4% &" �#)(%�!' �)*+'&%+��,�02/53���� �*#"*" '(�#%6(%7& �&�%�&%#8 �',+�7",+�&�", �6"),+��,�&�%�7)##%,&�9)(%3: �8%,&�",%+��,�&�%�;,&#"+)7&�",1�!%��'<%�(�8�&%+�&�%�(� &�"6�*#%<�") �=>? �&"�@�7'(%,+'#�.%'# 3A)% &�", /3��� �B)% &�",�!' �(�8�&%+�&"�C) &�&�%�*%# ",�"#�%,&�&.�&�'&�+�+�&�%�!"#$3�D%�#%8"<%�&�%�#%6%#%,7%�&"�E=FGH:IJ�!��7��� �&�%�6%+%#'(�#%K)('&�",3���%�8'L�8)8�*%,'(&.�'8"),&�6"#�6'�()#%�&"�,"&�6.�&�%�'K%,7.�!' �#%+)7%+3�03��%�!"#+�,K��' �7�',K%+1�4)&�&�%��,&%,&�!' �7",&'�,%+��,�&�%�"(+�A)% &�",�M03���%�B)% &�",�� �' $�,K�'4")&�E<� �4(%�%8�  �", J3�;,�&�� �7",&%L&�<� �4(%�%8�  �", �'#%�!�'&�!%� %%�!�&��")#�,'$%+�%.%3�FL'8*(% �!")(+�4%� �%%&�6(""#�,K�"#�7%8%,&�' 4% &" �4"'#+�('.�,K�",�&�%�K#"),+�'&�'�+%8"(�&�",� �&%3���%�&%#8�E6#�'4(%J�8%', ��"!�%' �(.�&�%�8'&%#�'(�!�((�#%(%' %�' 4% &" �6�4%# 3�3��� �� �&�%� '8%�' �&�%�%L� &�,K�A)% &�",�M�3���%�*"&%,&�'(�', !%# �!%#%� �8*(�6�%+3N3��� �!' �7",&'�,%+�!�&��,�%L� &�,K�A)% &�",�M�3�FL7%*&�6"#�'� �,K(%O6'8�(.�#% �+%,7%1�",(.�7%#&�6�%+�!"#$%# � �")(+�4%�*%#6"#8�,K�&�%�!"#$3���" %�!"#$%# ��'<%�&�%�&#'�,�,K�&"�*#"*%#(.�8�,�8�P%�' 4% &" �%L*" )#%�6"#�&�" %�*%"*(%��,�&�%�<�7�,�&.3@3��� �B)% &�",�� �,%!3�;&�'**%'# ��,�"&�%#�!"#$ �%%& 353��� �B)% &�",�� � �8�('#�&"�%L� &�,K�A)% &�",�M53�D%��'<%�(�8�&%+�&�%��� &"#.�&"�@�7'(%,+'#�.%'# 3���%�,)84%#�"6�*%#<�") �<�"('&�", �!�((�4%�'�8)(&�*(�%#�!��7��!�((�#'*�+(.��,7#%' %�&�%�&"&'(�*"�,& �',+��%,7%1�&�%�*%,'(&.�'8"),&3��%�8�,�8)8�',+�8'L�8)8�*%,'(&�% � �"!,��,�&�%��'4(%�",�*'K%�0��'<%�,"&�7�',K%+3



�

��������	
��
�
������������������
��������
���� !�"!  #$%&'(�))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))$*+,�)))))))))))))))))))))))))��-.'/0123�$*+3�)))))4�))))))4�)))))4�)))))56'�7188190:;�<.1='>2.'3�36%88�?'�23'>�0:�&%@0:;�%�.'=1&&':>%A01:�71.�%33'33&':A�17�=0/08�<':%8A0'3�71.�/018%A01:3�17�B'>'.%84�CA%A'4�%:>�81=%8�.';28%A01:3D��E0/08�<':%8A0'3�36128>�0:=82>'�%�F;.%/0AGH�=1&<1:':A�A6%A�36%88�?'�>'A'.&0:'>�%==1.>0:;�A1�CA'<�I�?'819D��J:�%>>0A01:4�=0/08�<':%8A0'3�71.�/018%A01:3�0:/18/0:;�%:�'=1:1&0=�?':'70A�A1�A6'�/018%A1.�36128>�0:=82>'�%�F?':'70AH�=1&<1:':AD��56'�%&12:A�17�A6'�?':'70A�=1&<1:':A�36128>�?'�'K20/%8':A�A1�A6'�'=1:1&0=�?':'70A�.'%80L'>�?G�A6'�/018%A1.�>2'�A1�A6'�:1:=1&<80%:='�%:>�&%G�?'�>'A'.&0:'>�%==1.>0:;�A1�CA'<�M�?'819D��56'�A1A%8�=0/08�<':%8AG�%33'33'>�71.�%�/018%A01:�36128>�?'�A6'�32&�17�A6'�F;.%/0AGH�%:>�F?':'70AH�=1&<1:':A3DNOP�� Q�R�	STOU��VW�VXPXOY��Z:39'.�%88�K2'3A01:3�?'819D�E6113'�A6'�3A%A'&':A�A6%A�?'3A�%:39'.3�A6'�K2'3A01:D��C2&�A6'�:2&'.0=%8�F.%A0:;3H�71.�%88�%:39'.3�%:>�<.1=''>�A1�A6'�A%?8'�%A�A6'�':>�17�A603�3'=A01:�A1�>'A'.&0:'�A6'�%<<.1<.0%A'�F;.%/0AGH�=1&<1:':ADID ��
������������������[���
��������������\$1D�]̂_5603�9%3�%:�Z>&0:03A.%A0/'̀-%<'.91.@�/018%A01:4�1A6'.�A6%:�Z;':=G�:1A070=%A01:4�1:�%�a'30>':A0%8�<.1b'=A�?G�19:'.�1.�%;':AD�]I_$1�:1A070=%A01:�17�91.@�1:�%�a'30>':A0%8�<.1b'=A�90A6�91.@�<'.71.&'>�?G�A6'�19:'.�1.�%;':AD�]M_5603�9%3�%:�Z>&0:03A.%A0/'̀-%<'.91.@�/018%A01:4�1A6'.�A6%:�Z;':=G�:1A070=%A01:4�?G�%�=1:A.%=A1.�1:�%�<.1b'=A�8'33�A6%:�$cCdZ-D�]e_$1�$1A070=%A01:�17�<.1b'=A�<'.71.&'>�?G�%�=1:A.%=A1.D�]f_$1�$1A070=%A01:�17�%�=1&&'.=0%8�<.1b'=A�8'33�A6%:�$cCdZ-CD�]f_5603�9%3�%:�Z>&0:03A.%A0/'̀-%<'.91.@�/018%A01:4�1A6'.�A6%:�Z;':=G�:1A070=%A01:4�1:�%�$cCdZ-�<.1b'=AD�]g_$1�:1A070=%A01:�17�%�$cCdZ-�<.1b'=AD�]Î_))))))�]<A3_hQ�����
����������[�

���\$1�1.�i:@:19:D�]̂_56'�/018%A01:�80@'8G�.'328A'>�0:�%:�'&03301:�17�:1:7.0%?8'�%3?'3A13�A6%A�9%3�=1:A%0:'>�A1�A6'�19:'.j1==2<0'>�.'30>':A0%8�<.1<'.AG�80&0A0:;�<1A':A0%8�'k<132.'D�]e_56'�/018%A01:�80@'8G�.'328A'>�0:�%:�'&03301:�17�7.0%?8'�%3?'3A13�A6%A�9%3�=1:A%0:'>�A1�A6'�19:'.j1==2<0'>�.'30>':A0%8�<.1<'.AG4�80&0A0:;�<1A':A0%8�'k<132.'D�]g_56'�/018%A01:�80@'8G�.'328A'>�0:�%�:1:j7.0%?8'�%3?'3A13�'&03301:�96'.'�A6'�<2?80=�&%G�6%/'�?'':�'k<13'>D�]Î_56'�/018%A01:�80@'8G�.'328A'>�0:�%�7.0%?8'�%3?'3A13�'&03301:�96'.'�A6'�<2?80=�&%G�6%/'�?'':�'k<13'>D�]If_))))))�]<A3_lQ���������mm��m������������n�m��o��p��
�q����r��\Z88�6%:>80:;�<.1='>2.'3�%<<'%.�A1�6%/'�?'':�718819'>4�1.�6%:>80:;�<.1='>2.'3�=%::1A�?'�>'A'.&0:'>D�]̂_a'&1/'>�&%A'.0%8�9%3�0&<.1<'.8G�?%;;'>�1.�&%.@'>4�?2A�A6'�ZEs�9%3�=1:A%0:'>D�]M_s%A'.0%8�9%3�:1A�9'AA'>�96':�.'&1/'>�%:>̀1.�?%;;'>D�]M_56'�&%A'.0%8�9%3�.'&1/'>�1.�A.%:3<1.A'>�0&<.1<'.8GD�]e_Z3?'3A13�&%A'.0%8�9%3�.'&1/'>�?G�:1:j='.A070'>�91.@'.3�]1:�%�:1:j19:'.�1==2<0'>�.'30>':A0%8�>9'880:;_D�]e_56'�%3?'3A13�9%3�>03<13'>�17�0&<.1<'.8GD�]g_))))))�]<A3_tQ����
��������������
m��
�������o����o��n������������\56'�/018%A01:�6%3�?'':�=1..'=A'>D�]̂_��56'�/018%A1.�%AA'&<A'>�A1�=1..'=A�A6'�<.1?8'&4�?2A�9%3�2:32=='33728D�]M_�56'�/018%A1.�9%3�2:%?8'�A1�=1..'=A�A6'�<.1?8'&D��]M_56'�/018%A1.�>0>�:1A�%AA'&<A�A1�=1..'=A�A6'�<.1?8'&D�]f_))))))�]<A3_uQ�����������������o�[m����
��

�o�����r�����
���������\�$1�=1&<8%0:A3D�]̂_*aEZZ�.'='0/'>�1:'�1.�&1.'�=1&<8%0:A3�7.1&�%:�2:%77'=A'>�<%.AGD�]I_*aEZZ�.'='0/'>�1:'�1.�&1.'�=1&<8%0:A3�7.1&�%:�%77'=A'>�<%.AGD�]e_*aEZZ�.'='0/'>�=1&<8%0:A3�7.1&�&1.'�A6%:�1:'�%77'=A'>�<%.AGD�]g_))))))�]<A3_vD T
����������
�����q���������
\$1�<.'/0123�603A1.GD�]̂_� +018%A1.�9%3�=1:A%=A'>�?G�*aEZZ�71.�%�30&08%.�0:=0>':A�?2A�9%3�:1A�=0A'>D�]I_+018%A1.�9%3�=1:A%=A'>�?G�*aEZZ�1:�&1.'�A6%:�1:'�1==%301:4�71.�30&08%.�0:=0>':A34�?2A�6%3�:1A�?'':�=0A'>D�]M_+018%A1.�6%3�.'='0/'>�%�9.0AA':�$*+�71.�%�30&08%.�/018%A01:D�]f_



�

��������	
��	�������	���	�����	���	�������	�����������	�����������	
��	�������	����	�
��	���	�����	���	�������	�����������	����������	������ !"#	$%"&'!(	)* %+	,,,,,,-��� �./ 0.1 �.2 ��.�� �3.�/ �0.�4 �1.�� �5.�2 3�.3� 33.3/ 30.34 3167�����8	9 ��� 34� 4�� �4� �:��� �:4�� 3:4�� /:�4� 4:��� �:4�� ��:��� �0:2�4;�<=	>?	@<A<BC�	DEF=EA<A�G		H��	�
�	��������	���������8	I������	����	�
�	���������J	K<;	,,,,,L	AE	,,,,,,?		M�	�
�	������	��	NK<;O:	��	������	I������	��������	�
���	I�	���P���	��	�
�	������8�		Q
�	���������	������	���P��	��	������	I������	��R	9�����������			S���
	��8	��P�������:	�������:	��	��8	��
��	���������	������������	T��	���P������	�
���	��	������	I������	�P����	IP�	�����	I�	�����8	��P�����	���	9�������=+U"#!(	V))+))W+U!G����������������������������� 		��������������� 9	������������������M��P��X	�����	 ���� 							 	Y���������	������8������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������Z������������������������������������� ��������������� 9	������������������Z��������	-P��������	 ���� 							 	Y���������	������8����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������Z������������������������������������ 		��������������� 9	������������������[\�P����	H������ ���� 							 S�������	������8����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������Z�������



�

��������	
��
�
������������������
������� !"�##########################################�$�!%&��'�'&(&)*��+,-'�&.�/0!�)*'/�1�2!*�'"#######3�######3�#######+,-4"�#########################�����������������5.'/�� /&�.'"�6.'7!��/0!�8�))�7&.9�:�!'/&�.'�*.;�*''&9.�/0!�*<<��<�&*/!�<�&./�%*)�!=�,. !�2���0*%!�*.'7!�!;�*))�/0!�:�!'/&�.'3�'�(�/0!�<�&./'�*.;��'!�/0!�$!.*)/2�>*/�&?�@*A)!�/��;!/!�(&.!�/0!��! �((!.;!;�<!.*)/2�*(��./=�@0!.3�;!/!�(&.!�/0!�;�))*��*(��./��8�/0!�! �.�(& �A!.!8&/3�&8�*.2=�@0!�/�/*)��! �((!.;!;�<!.*)/2�'0*))�A!�/0!�;�))*��*(��./� ���!'<�.;&.9�/��/0!�'�(��8�/0!�9�*%&/2�<�&./'3�<)�'�*.2�! �.�(& �A!.!8&/=B�*%&/2�C�D �.�(& �E!.!8&/�F�@�/*)�G! �((!.;!;�$!.*)/2HIJ��KL�MN	OPIQ��RS�RTJTIU��6.'7!��/0!�8�))�7&.9�:�!'/&�.'=����(�/0!�.�(!�& *)�V�*/&.9'W�8���*))�*.'7!�'�*.;�<�� !!;�/��/0!�/*A)!�*/�/0!�!.;��8�/0&'�'! /&�.�/��;!/!�(&.!�/0!�*<<��<�&*/!�V9�*%&/2W� �(<�.!./=KU ��
����������XY���
��������������Z+��[\]+��*(!.;(!./�.�/&8& */&�.��.�7��̂�<!�8��(!;�A2�'�(!�.!��/0!��/0*.�*� �./�* /���[_]+��*(!.;(!./�.�/&8& */&�.��.�7��̂�<!�8��(!;�A2�*� �./�* /���[̀]+��+�/&8& */&�.��8�*�<��a! /�<!�8��(!;�A2�'�(!�.!��/0!��/0*.�*� �./�* /���[b]+��+�/&8& */&�.��8�*�<��a! /�<!�8��(!;�A2�*� �./�* /���[c]#####�</'dU ������������
������Y�

���
��e����f�����g��
hY�X��
��
�
�i�������j�Y�������k	�SlZ+��[\]m!'3�/0!�(*/!�&*)�7*'�.�.n8�&*A)!�*'A!'/�'� �./*&.&.9�(*/!�&*)�[1]m!'3�/0!�(*/!�&*)�7*'�8�&*A)!�*'A!'/�'� �./*&.&.9�(*/!�&*)�[_\]#####�</'oU�� ������gg��g��������X���j�g��i�Xh��
�e����f�XZ6))�0*.;)&.9�<�� !;��!'�*<<!*��/��0*%!�A!!.�8�))�7!;3����0*.;)&.9�<�� !;��!'� *..�/�A!�;!/!�(&.!;�[\]G!(�%!;�(*/!�&*)�7*'�&(<��<!�)2�A*99!;����(*�̂!;3�A�/�/0!�6p>�7*'� �./*&.!;�[1]@0!�(*/!�&*)�7*'��!(�%!;�*.;q���;&'<�'!;��8�&(<��<!�)2�[r]#####�</'sU��� ��
�����
��
�
�g��t�i�g��e��Y�X�����gg��g�����f�����
�k�
�g���Nh���uUoUv�lZm!'�[\]+��[_\]#####�</'wU��� ��
��������������e��Y�X��e������xh���Y��
����RN�		�����������j�����Y��������g��������������������iih����jZ�+��[\]m!'�[_]#####�</'uU��� y��
���������������������
�����e�
�Y�������������
���������
�e��������
Z+��[\]@0!�!�&'�;� �(!./*/&�.�/0*/�,Gp663����*.�/0!��9�%!�.(!./�!./&/23�0*'� �./* /!;�/0!�%&�)*/���8���*�'&(&)*��&. &;!./�A�/�;&;�.�/� &/!�/0!�%&�)*/��=�[_],Gp66�0*'�&''�!;�+,-'�8���'&(&)*��%&�)*/&�.'=�[b�<�&./'�8���!* 0�<�!%&��'�'&(&)*��+,-�&''�!;]#####�</'I����j������
i����zzzzzz



�

�������	
����	����������� ��� ��� ���� ����� ����� ����� ����� ����� ����������	 ��� ��� ��� �!��� �!��� �!��� �!��� ��!��� ��!���"#$%	&'	($)$*+#	,-.%-)$)#/		0�1	�2�	3�������	�����4������	����5��	5��4	�2�	3��������6	7$"	88888'	)-	8888889		:5	�2�	��;<��	�;	=7$">!	��	�����4��	����5��	?������	;2���	��	����@1�1	��	�2�	?������A		�2�	�;��4���1	1�����	�4�@��	�5	�����4��	����5��	�;�	 																BBBBBA	C����2	���	����@������;!	��?���;!	��	���	��2��	?��������	��5��4�����A	"#$%	D'	#-#EF	,+G+F	%$)EF#7/		�2�	�����	�4�@��	�5	�2�	����44��1�1	��3��	?������	;2�@�1	��	�2�	;@4	�5	�2�	1�����	�4�@��;	5��4	���?	�	��1	���?	��			 BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB  BBBBBBBBBBBB	:;;@��H	;��55 0��� 							 I���44��1�1 	BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB  BBBBBBBBBBBB�@?��3�;�� 0��� 							 I���44��1�1 	BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB  BBBBBBBBBBBBJ��@��3�	0������� 0��� 							 C;;�;;�1	�������	BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB



�

��������	
����������	����	���	����	���������������	������������� !"��##$��%��&%�$�'()%$#)�*#+#,-#!�./0�1//�2������� !"��##$����'�#)�3 !�)#, &�$� 4�%4)�!#4 5%$� 4� 3�-'�&)�46�� !� $�#!��$!'+$'!#�2���#�$#!,�78#4 5%$� 49��%��%))#)�$ �$�#�$�$&#�$ ��4+&')#�$� �#�%+$�5�$�#�����+��%!#���,�&%!�$ �)#, &�$� 42�:'#�$� 4�.2�����;'#�$� 4������,�&%!�$ �#<��$�46�;'#�$� 4�=12���#�&%46'%6#��%��+�%46#)�3! ,�7(#!,�$�9�$ �74 $�3�+%$� 49�$ �%&�64���$�� '!�+'!!#4$�8#6'&%$� 4�212�����;'#�$� 4����$�#��%,#�%��#<��$�46�;'#�$� 4�=.2>2�����;'#�$� 4����, �$&?�4#�2�@�3#��#&#,#4$�� 3�#<��$�46�:'#�$� 4�=1��#!#�+%!!�#)�3 !�%!)2�@))�$� 4%&�%4��#!���#!#�%))#)�$ �#<(%4)�$�#�( ���-&#��+#4%!� ��$�%$�� '&)�-#��4+&')#)2A2��������%�4#��;'#�$� 42�B$�%((#%!�� 4��#5#!%&� 3� '!�!#5��#)�C#4%&$?�D !"��##$�2E2������%��%�!#(#%$� 3�#<��$�46�:'#�$� 4�=>2�D#��%5#�&�,�$#)�$�#����$ !?�$ �E�+%&#4)%!�?#%!�2���#�4',-#!� 3�(#!5� '��5� &%$� 4����&&�-#�%�,'&$�(&�#!����+����&&�!%(�)&?��4+!#%�#�$�#�$ $%&�( �4$��%4)��#4+#0�$�#�(#4%&$?�%, '4$2��#�!%46#� 3�$�#�(#4%&$�#���%��#<(%4)#)�$ �%�,%<�,',� 3�F./0///2�



�

��������	
��������������
�����������

������ !! "#$%�&' (�)*'�+�+�,!!�-��*+�)�#$�.,/#$%�,�'�( ..�$),0# $�� '�,++�++.�$0� ��(#1#!�&�$,!0#�+�� '�1# !,0# $+� ��2�)�',!3�40,0��,$)�! (,!�'�%*!,0# $+5��6#1#!�&�$,!0#�+�#$(!*)��,�7%',1#089�( .& $�$0�0�,0�+�,!!�-��)�0�'.#$�)�,(( ')#$%�0 �40�&�:�-�! "5��;$�,))#0# $3�(#1#!�&�$,!0#�+�� '�1# !,0# $+�#$1 !1#$%�,$��( $ .#(�-�$��#0�0 �0���1# !,0 '�+� *!)�#$(!*)��,�-�$��#0�( .& $�$05������,. *$0� ��0���-�$��#0�( .& $�$0�+� *!)�-���<*#1,!�$0�0 �0����( $ .#(�-�$��#0�'�,!#=�)�-8�0���1# !,0 '�)*��0 �0���$ $( .&!#,$(��,$)�.,8�-��)�0�'.#$�)�,(( ')#$%�0 �40�&�>3�-�! "5������0 0,!�(#1#!�&�$,!08�,++�++�)�� '�,�1# !,0# $�+� *!)�-��0���+*.� ��0���%',1#08�?40�&�:@�,$)�-�$��#0�( .& $�$0+�?40�&�>@54 *'(�ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBCDEFA�BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB G'�1# *+�CDE+ABBBB3�BBBB3�BBBB3�BBBBHIJ��KL�MNOPQIR��ST�SUJUI5��V$+"�'�,!!�<*�+0# $+�-�! "5��V))�0���$*.�'#(,!�',0#$%+�� '�,!!�,$+"�'+5:5I�W
��X�	
�������LY�+#)�$0#,!�-8�Z .� "$�'�?:@6 ..�'(#,!�-8�G' &�'08� "$�'�?>@Y�+#)�$0#,!�-8�6 $0',(0 '�?[@6 ..�'(#,!�-8�6 $0',(0 '�?\@BBBBB�&0+>5�����������WW�]��������������̂C �?_@Z,)�,$�,&&' 1�)�&�'.#03�-*0�)#)$̀0�",#0�:_�),8+�?:@V&&!#�)�� '�,�&�'.#0�-*0�0���&�'.#0�",+�$ 0�,&&' 1�)�8�0�?>@C �&�'.#0�"��$�+0,'0�)�?[@6 .&!�0�)�a -�bcdefghi�fj�klmnljlohnp�ehpdclhi@�"#0� *0�,�&�'.#0�?q@BBBBB�&0+[5	�
����
���r�]
����
������������X�����������������̂C �?_@;$(#)�$0� ((*''�)�-�� '��-*0��,+�$ 0�-��$�(#0�)�?>@;$(#)�$0� ((*''�)�. '��0�,$� $(�3�-*0��,+�$ 0�-��$�(#0�)�?q@4 *'(���,+�'�(�#1�)�,�"'#00�$�CDE�� '�,�+#.#!,'�1# !,0# $�?s@4 *'(���,+�'�(�#1�)�>t[�CDÈ+�� '�+#.#!,'�1# !,0# $+�?:_@4 *'(���,+�'�(�#1�)�\u�CDÈ+�� '�+#.#!,'�1# !,0# $+�?:q@BBBBB�&0+\5�
�
���
�
��
W�������vw���]��W����������]���
v�x�����������������̂C �( .&!,#$0+�?_@����1# !,0# $�",+�0���'�+*!0� ��,�'�& '0�-8�,�$ $t,���(0�)�&,'08�?:@����1# !,0# $�",+�0���'�+*!0� ��,�( .&!,#$0�-8�,$�,���(0�)�&,'08�?[@



��

������	
���	�����
�������	��
�������	����
���
������������������������������� �!"��######�$%&'�()�	�� �*+ �*, -*�� ��*�. �+*�- �/*0. 0.12��
�34 ��� .�� ��� ,�� �5��� 05��� �5���!�6��78�96 6:���;�<�� 6 �8���=���������	
��	����		����

3�>��������	���������	
���	?��@A)����5�BC����D��E��������F������3��5������		����>�������	���	����

�>����
��������������
�3D�����������������	

�����	���	����		����>��������G�4������D��H�������3���
��
���	�5����	���5�	���3�	���������������	�����	D��I	���������	��F�������		����>������	��������>����	�
��	��>���
���
3���
��
���������4���D��D��������������������� �������� �������������������E����J�)���� =��� K��	�������2��
�3��������������������������������������������������������������L	�������������������������� �������� �������������������)�������	� =��� K��	�������2��
�3�������������������������������������������������������������L	�������������������������� �������� �������������������AM��������=�����	� =��� H��������2��
�3



��

��������	�
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������  ��!"��#�#"$"%&��'()#�"*�+,��%&#+�-�.�&�#��������/�������/��������'()0��������������������������������������������1*#+���+"�*#��2*#3���+,��4�%%�3"*5�6��#+"�*#�&*7�&##"5*�+,��&88��8�"&+��8�"*+�!&%��9�(*���.���,&!��&*#3���7�&%%�+,��6��#+"�*#/�#�$�+,��8�"*+#�&*7��#��+,�� �*&%+.�:&+�";�<&=%��+��7�+��$"*��+,������$$�*7�7�8�*&%+.�&$��*+9�<,�*/�7�+��$"*��+,��7�%%&��&$��*+��4�+,�����*�$"��=�*�4"+/�"4�&*.9�<,��+�+&%�����$$�*7�7�8�*&%+.�#,&%%�=��+,��7�%%&��&$��*+������#8�*7"*5�+��+,��#�$��4�+,��5�&!"+.�8�"*+#/�8%�#�&*.����*�$"��=�*�4"+9>�&!"+.�?�@��*�$"��A�*�4"+B�<�+&%�C���$$�*7�7� �*&%+.DEF��GH�I�JKLEM��NO�NPFPE9��2*#3���+,��4�%%�3"*5�6��#+"�*#9����$�+,��*�$��"�&%�Q�&+"*5#R�4���&%%�&*#3��#�&*7�8�����7�+��+,��+&=%��&+�+,���*7��4�+,"#�#��+"�*�+��7�+��$"*��+,��&88��8�"&+��Q5�&!"+.R���$8�*�*+9-9 ���������
�����������������������S�T������UV
���WX�#�YZ['��Y\[������8+#]9 ���������S���
�����������������������̂�T�_������W�"*5%��̀&$"%.�C�#"7�*+"&%�8��a��+�8��4��$�7�=.�+,��8��8��+.��3*���Yb[c�$$���"&%�8��a��+�8��4��$�7�=.�+,��8��8��+.��3*���Y\[�"*5%��̀&$"%.�C�#"7�*+"&%�8��a��+�8��4��$�7�=.�&���*+�&�+���Yd[c�$$���"&%�8��a��+�8��4��$�7�=.�&���*+�&�+���YbZ[������8+#d9 ������������T��U������eU���
����
�WX�#�YZ[2���8.��4�+,��&#=�#+�#�#��!�.�3&#�*�+�&!&"%&=%���*f#"+��Yb[<,��!"�%&+���7"7�*�+�&7,����+��+,����6�"��7�3&"+"*5�8��"�7�Yg['��&#=�#+�#�#��!�.�3&#���*7��+�7��*�&�#+���+����Y"9�9���+=�"%7"*5[�+,&+�3&#�*�+�%"h�%.�+����*+&"*�#�#8��+�$&+��"&%�Y-['��&#=�#+�#�#��!�.�3&#���*7��+�7��*�&�#"*5%�f4&$"%.���#"7�*��9�YbZ['��&#=�#+�#�#��!�.�3&#���*7��+�7��*�&�#+���+���/��+,���+,&*�&�#"*5%�f4&$"%.���#"7�*���Yb-[������8+#ij� �����������������S��
����S������eU���
����V��N��JJ�����������k�����
�����������������������������TTU����kW'��YZ[X�#�Y-[������8+#lj� 	������������������������������S���
�������������������������S���������W'��YZ[<,����"#�7���$�*+&+"�*�+,&+�(Cc22/����&*�+,���5�!��*$�*+��*+"+./�,&#���*+&�+�7�+,��!"�%&+���4���&�#"$"%&��"*�"7�*+�=�+�7"7�*�+��"+��+,��!"�%&+��9�Yb[(Cc22�,&#�"##��7�'()#�4���#"$"%&��!"�%&+"�*#9�Y\�8�"*+#�4����&�,�8��!"��#�#"$"%&��'()�"##��7[������8+#E����k�������T���m��nnnnnnnnn



��

������	
�����
����������� ��� ��� ���� ����� ����� ����� ����� ����� ����� �� ������	
! ��� ��� ��� ���� ���� �"��� ���� ���� ���� �����#$%&
'(
)%*%+,$
-./&.*%*$0

12
�3�
4������
�����5����	
����6�
6��5
�3�
4������7
8%#
99999(
*.
999999:

;6
�3�
��<=��
<
>8%#?"
��
�����5�
����6�
@�����
<3���
��
���A2�2
�
�3�
@�����	B

�3�
�<�5���2
2�����
�5�A��
�6
�����5�
����6�
<�
!















CCCCCB
D����3
��	
����A�����<"
��@���<"
��
��	
��3��
@�������
�6��5����B
#$%&
E(
$.$FG
-,H,G
&%*FG$80

�3�
�����
�5�A��
�6
�3�
����55��2�2
�4�
@�����	
<3�A�2
��
�3�
<A5
�6
�3�
2�����
�5�A��<
6��5
���@
�
��2
���@
��


!CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCBCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCC CCCCCCCCCCCCCCC !CCCCCCCCCCCC
;<<A�I
<��66 1��� 






 J���55��2�2
CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCC CCCCCCCCCCCCCCC !
CCCCCCCCCCCC�A@��4<�� 1��� 






 
J���55��2�2
CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCC CCCCCCCCCCCCCCC !CCCCCCCCCCCCK���A�4�
1������
 1��� 






 
D<<�<<�2
@�����	CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCC



��� �������	
����
����������	�
��������������� !"#�$%�����&'$%�())�&'*$%�+,-./$-%�01(%�2".����3456 545 �'"�7$8,9: ;"<$ �� 2"=� �9*8>""-? �'�0 %�/"�@0 %� �'��%� �'�? A BC6������C ?66D ED�%�FG �H I8*,�.<$�*>�J"$�"��K��L�8$�M".�$"��KALC+8�9*��+8�9/,9%�+8�9/9"N%��O/��K!CL 5 C6@AP���5 ?66P EDG%��5 Q J"�98$<$>�R�$"-�K��N*,�"-�?���."$�-LA&8��.8$��/"��&8��/9"N%�&8��/9"N�3�456 �45 56S�������6 ?6�6 EDD%D5G Q�5(.T"$���U<��.8$%�&<��."�<�N" 64?5 � ?6�� EP5%6�P����D� �9*8>""-: ���V��W	XY���X �F4?5 ?6�? EP6%FPG?6�C EP�%?5D?6�A EDP%6C??6�5 E�66%��6?6�F E�6D%C5??6�G E�65%PGF?6�D E��C%A6P
+8-.-�9"$�ZJ 

��[F[�D��6\66��&

]̂ _̂ ]̂^̀ ]̂â ]̂aa ]̂a] ]̂ab ]̂ac ]̂ad ]̂ae ]̂af ]̂a_ghij ]̂ _̂ ]̂^̀ ]̂â ]̂aa ]̂a] ]̂ab ]̂ac ]̂ad ]̂ae ]̂af ]̂a_klmnm oap]e_peb̀ oapcb_p]ed oapccfpcfe oapcecp]b̀ oapbffpe_b oapbebpb̀_ oapbfap̀_c oapdbdpe_e oapec̀paab oapefepdca oapf_fpb]cqrs adteb aetda aet]̀ adtca adtà act̀c adtca adtbc adt]] adt_] adtfe
adteb

aetda aet]̀
adtca adtà act̀c adtca adtbc adt]] adt_] adtfe

acactd
adadtd
aeaetd
af

ôo]̂ p̂̂̂ ^oĉ p̂̂̂ ^oê p̂̂̂ ^o_̂ p̂̂̂ ^oap̂̂ p̂̂̂ ^oap]̂ p̂̂̂ ^oapĉ p̂̂̂ ^oapê p̂̂̂ ^oap_̂ p̂̂̂ ^o]p̂̂ p̂̂̂ ^

u�lv�qrswmxiyijzhm{|h}hvznm
~��������������������

ghij klmnm qrs



ORCAA - Actual Payroll Costs

 

FY2017   

Annual Salary

FY2018      

Annual Salary

FY2019       

Annual Salary FTE Hired

Actual Actual  Projected

Name   

Engineer Arroyo 14,619.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Left Agency

Janitor Brown 7,361.90 1,942.28 0.00 0.00 Left Agency

Engineer Demay 91,452.00 95,088.00 99,408.00 0.87 Apr-12

Compliance Feidt 0.00 0.00 34,744.00 1.00 Nov-18

Compliance Gibson 51,288.00 53,772.00 58,968.00 1.00 Jun-15

Engineer Goodin 118,924.00 123,948.00 127,668.00 1.00 May-92

IT Grant 60,172.00 63,092.00 66,992.00 1.00 Nov-15

Monitoring Hadley 87,604.00 91,760.00 97,350.00 1.00 Aug-12

Admin Harding 84,360.00 85,800.00 88,380.00 1.00 Mar-03

Engineer Manley 77,610.00 81,372.00 88,784.00 1.00 Sep-13

ExecDir McNair 124,000.00 128,004.00 135,000.00 1.00 Mar-09

Maintenance Meinberg 659.25 308.31 1,300.00 0.01 Jun-10

Compliance Mingo 52,944.00 55,452.00 8,178.38 0.00 Left Agency

Admin D Moody 72,324.00 73,548.00 75,756.00 1.00 May-91

Compliance R Moody 119,220.00 123,948.00 127,668.00 1.00 Apr-91

Admin D. Nelson 84,360.00 85,800.00 88,380.00 1.00 Feb-04

Compliance Shults 88,976.00 94,329.00 100,689.00 1.00 Feb-05

Janitor Wack 0.00 4,468.00 7,508.28 0.20 Nov-17

Admin Wallner 40,856.00 42,955.35 45,408.00 1.00 Nov-13

Engineer Whybrew 39,522.92 73,710.00 78,270.00 1.00 Dec-16

Compliance Wright 39,227.54 50,133.42 0.00 0.00 Left Agency

Compliance NEW AQS 1 0.00 0.00 26,058.00 1.00 Jan-19

Intern Cutler 0.00 72.99 15,747.01 - Interns

Intern Schumaker 0.00 72.99 15,107.97 - Interns

Salaries 1,255,480.61$ 1,329,576.34$    1,387,364.64$    

FICA 94,903.00 100,687.79 106,133.00 StartDate EndDate ORCAA

DRS-Retirement 139,225.00 167,857.11 172,910.00 7/1/2015 6/30/2017 11.18%

AWC-Medicals 181,263.36 182,304.35 187,774.00 7/1/2017 8/31/2018 12.70%

L&I 5,670.34 6,898.47 7,898.00 9/1/2018 Present 12.83%

Paid Med Fam-ESD 0.00 0.00 1,725.00

1,676,542.31$ 1,787,324.06$    1,863,804.64$    16.07

11/06/18 lmh

DRS Rate History

A
n

n
u

a
l 
E

m
p

lo
y
e

r 

P
a

id
  

B
e

n
e

fi
ts



��������������	
	��	�����	���	��������	
���	���	��	����������� ��� �!""# $%&'()�*+(,�!""- .!/0������� ��  1 /2�3456 78)9��:�!""#�;�78<+� ":�!""- � ������ �����!""- $%&'()�*+(,�!""= ./"0��������  1 ���3456 78)9��:�!""-�;�78<+� ":�!""= � ������ ���"�!""= $%&'()�*+(,�!"�" .#/0�������� !1""�3456 78)9��:�!""=�;�78<+� ":�!"�" � ������ ��=�!"�" "1""2 $%&'()�*+(,�!"�� /""0�������� � >?�3456 78)9��:�!"�"�;�78<+� ":�!"�� � ������ ��-�!"�� "1""2 $%&'()�*+(,�!"�! /!/0�������� � >?�3456 78)9��:�!"���;�78<+� ":�!"�! � ������ ��� �!"�! "1""2 $%&'()�*+(,�!"� /!/0�������� 6@@+@�!<@��+,&?<()�A?)%@(9 >?�3456 78)9��:�!"�!�;�78<+� ":�!"� � ������ ���!�!"� !1-2�3456 $%&'()�*+(,�!"�. /!/0�������� � 78)9��:�!"� �;�78<+� ":�!"�. � ������ �����!"�. !2�3456 $%&'()�*+(,�!"�/ /!/0��������)8& �&B��C(&+��()(,9��8,D+9 78)9��:�!"�.�;�78<+� ":�!"�/ � ������ ���"�!"�/ �1-2�3456 $%&'()�*+(,�!"�� /!/0��������)8& !<@��C(&+�()(,9��8,D+9 78)9��:�!"�/�;�78<+� ":�!"�� � ������ ��-�!"�� �1.2�3456 $%&'()�*+(,�!"�# /!/0��������)8&  ,@��C(&+�()(,9��8,D+9 78)9��:�!"���;�78<+� ":�!"�# � ������ /��"�!"�# �1#2�3456 $%&'()�*+(,�!"�- /!/0�������� � 78)9��:�!"�#�;�78<+� ":�!"�- � ������ ��� �!"�-  1"2�3456 $%&'()�*+(,�!"�= /!/0�������� � 78)9��:�!"�-;�78<+� ":�!"�= � ��



�

����������	�
������

�	����������������������
���  !"#��$���%#&#'("� #)!"(*+,-� #.#'#-/#�0(*#� !"#�12(-)#�������������  ,3#'*�4,,&56�1,78"+(-/#�4(-()#'�9:;<=�>:?@A;�<6�#B*$��<;6�',3#'*$7,,&5C,'/(($,')�
D�
�
�����������	��� 	EF���GHI�E��E�G�J��J�K�L�MNGEO��H����������OPQGHI�E��PQ���R��R��N����G�L��GS�LI��MH�KHGFF�H����OIE�HN��J��M�KK��S�FIQIEO�TIHN�HN����L�����IK��UK��FFIM�R������
����
����	��� V���IL��GJJ���GQ�H��J��M��L�TIHN�J��J�K�L�MNGEO�K�H���PQ���R��R�����
��������W
�� X2#�8',8,Y#&�'!"#�"(-)!()#�+Y�Y2,Z-�,-�8()#�:$����
��	�V����[�����
��������� \]̂_V�

��
��������W
�����	�	
��  ,3#'*�4,,&56�1,78"+(-/#�4(-()#'���̀ ������� abcd�ebfghi�cd�jkidiglim�fggnfoop�lq�lbi�rqfkms�abi�jkqjqdim�felcqg�ebfghid�lbi�ittielcui�mfli�qt�lbi�vimikfo�wnoid�cxjoixiglim�yp�zw{||s�vqooq}cgh�f�dlftt�oiuio�kiuci}�qt�lbi�ebfghid�lq�timikfo�knoid~�gq�dchgctcefgl�ebfghid�}iki�gqlim�lbfl�}qnom�fttiel�zw{||�d��nkcdmcelcqgs�bqnom�lbi�rqfkm�ebqqdi�lq�xqui�tqk}fkm�fl�lbcd�lcxi~�dlftt�



�

������������	
��������������������������������	����
������������	
���������������������������
�������������������������������������������������������������� ������ �!�������������������������������������������������������"����#�������� �����������$����������������������������������������������������������%����������&�����
�������������&'$(�
��������������������������������
	((#����������



�

��������	
������������������������������������������� ������!"#$#%#&�'#(#&)*�&#+,*)-./$0�)&#�&#'#&#$1#(�.$�2345560�&,*#07�-"#�#''#1-.%#�()-#�0")**�8#�9,*:�;7�<=>>;?@@;AB



���������	
�������
��������
����������������	
��
����������������� ��

� !""�#$%"&'�()*+�,�-./�')0�$"1!01�*2�)"$1&)0�*34567895.�05:�;<=>?;@@����A����BCDE�BF�BG�EH��IBA���BG�BCJ�K�����L�BF��C�AF�A���AL�F�JM�EHD��EBF��BDFEJM��A�H�FLEBFM�BF�EH���DIN��E��BG���EAIC��H�FL�A���ACC�KDIC����B�O���B�E���K�B�����EB�A�A���KDIC����B�O���BFE�A�E�M�AF��A��BF�DCE�FL�����������B�E���GB��A��H�E��ED�ACM��FL�F����FL�AF��BEH���K�BG����BFAC���������P����H���A�M�����QRP�SP�TT���U��V�����W
���X��U��X���������X�����Y�Z����W��	
�Z[�������Y�����
M�����W��������������
���Z���W��U�U�Z[���
�����W��	
���
���Y����

\���U����H���A�M������U�����Z���Z�������Y������
�����W��	
���
���Y����

�
M�B��AA��
���]����U����U�Y�����
��������
�Z��
V��X�
Y�������Y����U���
\���H���A�M�����QRP��P�Q����]����
�V������X���[�Y�Z��
V�����Û�����V���X���[_
���]������������Y����

������
��̂���
���U�V���������V��W�[
��������Y��
V�V��������������
������������X�������[���V��Y�Z�����
�Y��̀���U���]�������
�������[����X��[����[Y�����Y����

������
��̂���
���U���]��
�]������������
�����
���Z��	�Y���������W�V�V���X���[\���FB�M�EH���GB��M�EH��IBA���BG�BCJ�K�����L�BF��C�AF�A���AL�F�J�aB��AAbM�EHD��EBF��BDFEJM��A�H�FLEBFM�H���IJ����BC����A��GBCCB��c����3d895.�=:� EV������������AX�������Z�W����B��AA���U�EV��
�������[��
�V���Z[���Y����UP���3d895.�;:�  *�'�*5483e4:��B��AA�W�����������W�V�V��������Y�����
����V���U����̂���
������������
V��X���a����b���V�̂��V���������������
��
�V�
�U����V���������U��Z�
������B��AAf
��
������
�����Y�Z����W��	
�������
���U����
����X�
��̂���
�U�̂���Y�U���U���������U�Z[��������U���V���g�
�B��AAf
��h����̂������������
�X��V��������P�����3d895.�i:��� �j-66�#7k69d�(5el4�*5483e�EV�������W��X�
�����W��	
���
���Y����U���
������
�Z��
V�U������
��Z[�B��AA�Y��
����������QRP�SP�TTc�� �P�B��AA���[��
��V��������K�Z�������	
���
���Y����U���
�����Y�Z����W��	
�Y��̀��
��
�
�����V����B��AAf��K���V�
��X�������P��EV��Z���	��X������[�Y��̀����������
���������Y��
V��X���[�Y��̀��
�Z[�YV�
�
��
�Y��V�Z��U�������
�U��������V��Y��Y�
������̂��U��X�V����h�����U������������������������V����[�Z������
��X�V��
�����W��	
���
���Y����

P�����P�#7k69d-895.:��A����
��������[���M����Z�V�������B��AAM������
V����Y�Z��
V��������W
Y�Y������X������������������W�V���V��̀���
U�����������������V���h�
��������V����
��������
��
���U�
������V������
������������
�����
��V���
��������
��
P����
Y��
�Z�����������
�
V����Z���UU�U����YY��Y������������
��a
b�����[�����V��V�[����Y����V����������YY����������U�������������������]�������
�������
�����
��XP���� �b�B��AA���
��̂�
�V����XV���Y�Z��
V����������������������V�����
����WV���Y����

������
��̂���
�����V������
����X�
��̂���
�������]����U�Z[�B��AAM����
�
���W�V�B��AAf
�K���V�
��X�������P����



���������	
�������
��������
����������������	
��
����������������� ��

�� !"#$%�&'��� ($%)*+"#%,�� -.#! )�/$)" -���0� ($%)*+"#%,�� -.#! )'����
����1�
��2���
�����3����

������
��2���
�4��4�2����3�������5��������������3�����3��6�����6������6�����4����������6���1�������1�
��2���
��
�6�����6��������780��0���0���0� 9*:+#!;"#$%'��<����
��������5���=����>�4�������?��<<=������
4����3�>��
4��������@
3�3������1������������������@�4���4��A���
6�����������������4���B�
��������4�����
����1�
��2���
���
��������
��
���6�
������
�����
����C�����������
����������
�3��2�6��1����
����1�
��2���
0�����4��62���
����
�@���������6����������������4�@������6�4���66��

���6����34�������>����������3��
����2�����?��<<�@4������3��2�6�����4���6����
��
���4��<1���5D
�3��A���6����6
��������
����1�
��2���
0��E���
����3��
��
�3��2�6��1����
����1�
��2���
���5����3����4����������33������������5������6�>����
�6����4�5�����4����������������C�������
0���70� 9-$F ))#$%;+�G-!H#" !"*-;+�;%I�J%,#%  -#%,�� -.#! )'�K4���������
��
�@����6�
��1��
4�>�@����3����

���������4����������6���1�������1�
��2���
��
�6�����6��������780��0������6��4������
����1�
��2���
���6�@�������������1�������5���4��3�>����?��<<D
�3��A���6���C�������
�������5����1��5����53�����3����

����������4������
����1�
��2���
0��?��<<���
��2�
�4����14���3�>��
4����������������������4�����
����@4���3����

������
��2���
�����4������
����1�
��2���
�������C����6�>5�?��<<=����
�
���@�4�?��<<D
�L���4�
��1�L����50��L<�����4�
��M4�6�5����N�2��>��=��������6�
�1��6������4�������������
�3�

�1��4�
��M4�6�5����N�2��>��=�����0��OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO���B����2�����������<LL�?����<��K?�E?��P���OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO��<1���5�<����5�� � � � � � � � � ��Q8Q�����4�



���������	
�������
��������
����������������	
��
����������������� ��

 !"� #$#%#&'#()� !"�*+,-.,/00�12344�56%7(�%6(8#%�'6&8%3'8�9%6'#:;%#(<=>2>8#:�9;?4>'�56%7(�9%6'#((<@#$>&>8>6&,�ABC�DEFG�GHIJFKL�MNKOFPHG�QLFRKNS�GSTUU�VKNWG�NKGJHN�MNKOFGFKLG�JK�TVTNP�IKLJNTIJG�RKN�IKLGJNQIJFKLX�YQFUPFLZX�NHLKOTJFKLX�NHSKPHUFLZX�TUJHNTJFKLX�NHMTFNX�KN�FSMNKOHSHLJ�KR�NHTU�MNKMHNJ[�JETJ�ST[�YH�QGHP�Y[�GJTJH�TZHLIFHG�TLP�Y[�TL[�UKITU�ZKOHNLSHLJ�JETJ�FG�H\MNHGGU[�TQJEKNF]HP�JK�QGH�JEHGH�MNKOFGFKLĜ�DEHGH�MNKOFGFKLG�ST[�YH�QGHP�FL�UFHQ�KR�KJEHN�MNKIHPQNHG�JK�TVTNP�IKLJNTIJG�RKN�GQIE�VKNW�VFJE�TL�HGJFSTJHP�IKGJ�KR�JENHH�EQLPNHP�JEKQGTLP�PKUUTNG�KN�UHGĜ�DEH�GSTUU�VKNWG�NKGJHN�MNKIHGG�FLIUQPHG�JEH�UFSFJHP�MQYUFI�VKNWG�MNKIHGG�TQJEKNF]HP�QLPHN�GQYGHIJFKL�A_C�KR�JEFG�GHIJFKL�TLP�TL[�UKITU�ZKOHNLSHLJ�TQJEKNF]HP�JK�TVTNP�IKLJNTIJG�QGFLZ�JEH�GSTUU�VKNWG�NKGJHN�MNKIHGG�QLPHN�JEFG�GHIJFKL�ST[�TVTNP�IKLJNTIJG�QGFLZ�JEH�UFSFJHP�MQYUFI�VKNWG�MNKIHGG�QLPHN�GQYGHIJFKL�A_C�KR�JEFG�GHIJFKL̂�ÀCATC�a�GJTJH�TZHLI[�KN�TQJEKNF]HP�UKITU�ZKOHNLSHLJ�ST[�INHTJH�T�GFLZUH�ZHLHNTU�GSTUU�VKNWG�NKGJHNX�KN�ST[�INHTJH�T�GSTUU�VKNWG�NKGJHN�RKN�PFRRHNHLJ�GMHIFTUJFHG�KN�ITJHZKNFHG�KR�TLJFIFMTJHP�VKNŴ�bEHNH�TMMUFITYUHX�GSTUU�VKNWG�NKGJHNG�ST[�STWH�PFGJFLIJFKLG�YHJVHHL�IKLJNTIJKNG�YTGHP�QMKL�PFRRHNHLJ�ZHKZNTMEFI�TNHTG�GHNOHP�Y[�JEH�IKLJNTIJKN̂�DEH�GSTUU�VKNWG�NKGJHN�KN�NKGJHNG�GETUU�IKLGFGJ�KR�TUU�NHGMKLGFYUH�IKLJNTIJKNG�VEK�ETOH�NHcQHGJHP�JK�YH�KL�JEH�UFGJX�TLP�VEHNH�NHcQFNHP�Y[�UTV�TNH�MNKMHNU[�UFIHLGHP�KN�NHZFGJHNHP�JK�MHNRKNS�GQIE�VKNW�FL�JEFG�GJTJĤ�a�GJTJH�TZHLI[�KN�UKITU�ZKOHNLSHLJ�HGJTYUFGEFLZ�T�GSTUU�VKNWG�NKGJHN�KN�NKGJHNG�ST[�NHcQFNH�HUFZFYUH�IKLJNTIJKNG�PHGFNFLZ�JK�YH�MUTIHP�KL�T�NKGJHN�KN�NKGJHNG�JK�WHHM�IQNNHLJ�NHIKNPG�KR�TL[�TMMUFITYUH�UFIHLGHGX�IHNJFRFITJFKLGX�NHZFGJNTJFKLGX�YKLPFLZX�FLGQNTLIHX�KN�KJEHN�TMMNKMNFTJH�STJJHNG�KL�RFUH�VFJE�JEH�GJTJH�TZHLI[�KN�UKITU�ZKOHNLSHLJ�TG�T�IKLPFJFKL�KR�YHFLZ�MUTIHP�KL�T�NKGJHN�KN�NKGJHNĜ�aJ�UHTGJ�KLIH�T�[HTNX�JEH�GJTJH�TZHLI[�KN�UKITU�ZKOHNLSHLJ�GETUU�MQYUFGE�FL�T�LHVGMTMHN�KR�ZHLHNTU�IFNIQUTJFKL�VFJEFL�JEH�dQNFGPFIJFKL�T�LKJFIH�KR�JEH�H\FGJHLIH�KR�JEH�NKGJHN�KN�NKGJHNG�TLP�GKUFIFJ�JEH�LTSHG�KR�IKLJNTIJKNG�RKN�GQIE�NKGJHN�KN�NKGJHNĜ�eL�TPPFJFKLX�NHGMKLGFYUH�IKLJNTIJKNG�GETUU�YH�TPPHP�JK�TL�TMMNKMNFTJH�NKGJHN�KN�NKGJHNG�TJ�TL[�JFSH�JEH[�GQYSFJ�T�VNFJJHL�NHcQHGJ�TLP�LHIHGGTN[�NHIKNPĜ�fTGJHN�IKLJNTIJG�ST[�YH�NHcQFNHP�JK�YH�GFZLHP�JETJ�YHIKSH�HRRHIJFOH�VEHL�T�GMHIFRFI�TVTNP�FG�STPH�QGFLZ�T�GSTUU�VKNWG�NKGJHN̂�AYC�a�GJTJH�TZHLI[�HGJTYUFGEFLZ�T�GSTUU�VKNWG�NKGJHN�KN�NKGJHNG�GETUU�TPKMJ�NQUHG�FSMUHSHLJFLZ�JEFG�GQYGHIJFKL̂�a�UKITU�ZKOHNLSHLJ�HGJTYUFGEFLZ�T�GSTUU�VKNWG�NKGJHN�KN�NKGJHNG�GETUU�TPKMJ�TL�KNPFLTLIH�KN�NHGKUQJFKL�FSMUHSHLJFLZ�JEFG�GQYGHIJFKL̂�gNKIHPQNHG�FLIUQPHP�FL�NQUHG�TPKMJHP�Y[�JEH�PHMTNJSHLJ�KR�HLJHNMNFGH�GHNOFIHG�FL�FSMUHSHLJFLZ�JEFG�GQYGHIJFKL�SQGJ�YH�FLIUQPHP�FL�TL[�NQUHG�MNKOFPFLZ�RKN�T�GSTUU�VKNWG�NKGJHN�KN�NKGJHNG�JETJ�FG�TPKMJHP�Y[�TLKJEHN�GJTJH�TZHLI[X�FR�JEH�TQJEKNFJ[�RKN�JETJ�GJTJH�TZHLI[�JK�HLZTZH�FL�JEHGH�TIJFOFJFHG�ETG�YHHL�PHUHZTJHP�JK�FJ�Y[�JEH�PHMTNJSHLJ�KR�HLJHNMNFGH�GHNOFIHG�QLPHN�IETMJHN�.*,/+�hib �̂aL�FLJHNUKITU�IKLJNTIJ�KN�TZNHHSHLJ�YHJVHHL�JVK�KN�SKNH�GJTJH�TZHLIFHG�KN�UKITU�ZKOHNLSHLJG�HGJTYUFGEFLZ�T�GSTUU�VKNWG�NKGJHN�KN�NKGJHNG�JK�YH�QGHP�Y[�JEH�MTNJFHG�JK�JEH�TZNHHSHLJ�KN�IKLJNTIJ�SQGJ�IUHTNU[�FPHLJFR[�JEH�UHTP�HLJFJ[�JETJ�FG�NHGMKLGFYUH�RKN�FSMUHSHLJFLZ�JEH�MNKOFGFKLG�KR�JEFG�GQYGHIJFKL̂�AIC�gNKIHPQNHG�GETUU�YH�HGJTYUFGEHP�RKN�GHIQNFLZ�JHUHMEKLHX�VNFJJHLX�KN�HUHIJNKLFI�cQKJTJFKLG�RNKS�IKLJNTIJKNG�KL�JEH�TMMNKMNFTJH�GSTUU�VKNWG�NKGJHN�JK�TGGQNH�JETJ�T�IKSMHJFJFOH�MNFIH�FG�HGJTYUFGEHP�TLP�JK�TVTNP�IKLJNTIJG�JK�JEH�UKVHGJ�NHGMKLGFYUH�YFPPHNX�TG�PHRFLHP�FL�hib�*+,-.,-/-̂�eLOFJTJFKLG�RKN�cQKJTJFKLG�GETUU�FLIUQPH�TL�HGJFSTJH�KR�JEH�GIKMH�TLP�LTJQNH�KR�JEH�VKNW�JK�YH�MHNRKNSHP�TG�VHUU�TG�STJHNFTUG�TLP�HcQFMSHLJ�JK�YH�RQNLFGEHP̂�jKVHOHNX�PHJTFUHP�MUTLG�TLP�GMHIFRFITJFKLG�LHHP�LKJ�YH�FLIUQPHP�FL�JEH�FLOFJTJFKL̂�DEFG�GQYGHIJFKL�PKHG�LKJ�HUFSFLTJH�KJEHN�NHcQFNHSHLJG�RKN�TNIEFJHIJQNTU�KN�HLZFLHHNFLZ�TMMNKOTUG�TG�JK�cQTUFJ[�TLP�IKSMUFTLIH�VFJE�YQFUPFLZ�IKPHĜ�kQKJTJFKLG�ST[�YH�FLOFJHP�RNKS�TUU�TMMNKMNFTJH�IKLJNTIJKNG�KL�JEH�TMMNKMNFTJH�GSTUU�VKNWG�NKGJHN̂�aG�TL�TUJHNLTJFOHX�cQKJTJFKLG�ST[�YH�FLOFJHP�RNKS�TJ�UHTGJ�RFOH�IKLJNTIJKNG�KL�JEH�TMMNKMNFTJH�GSTUU�VKNWG�NKGJHN�VEK�ETOH�FLPFITJHP�JEH�ITMTYFUFJ[�KR�MHNRKNSFLZ�JEH�WFLP�KR�VKNW�YHFLZ�IKLJNTIJHPX�FL�T�STLLHN�JETJ�VFUU�HcQFJTYU[�PFGJNFYQJH�JEH�KMMKNJQLFJ[�TSKLZ�JEH�IKLJNTIJKNG�KL�JEH�TMMNKMNFTJH�NKGJHN̂�jKVHOHNX�FR�JEH�HGJFSTJHP�IKGJ�KR�JEH�VKNW�FG�RNKS�KLH�EQLPNHP�RFRJ[�JEKQGTLP�PKUUTNG�JK�JENHH�EQLPNHP�JEKQGTLP�PKUUTNGX�T�GJTJH�TZHLI[�KN�UKITU�ZKOHNLSHLJ�JETJ�IEKKGHG�JK�GKUFIFJ�YFPG�RNKS�UHGG�JETL�TUU�JEH�TMMNKMNFTJH�IKLJNTIJKNG�KL�JEH�TMMNKMNFTJH�GSTUU�VKNWG�NKGJHN�SQGJ�TUGK�LKJFR[�JEH�NHSTFLFLZ�IKLJNTIJKNG�KL�JEH�TMMNKMNFTJH�GSTUU�VKNWG�NKGJHN�JETJ�cQKJTJFKLG�KL�JEH�VKNW�TNH�YHFLZ�GKQZEĴ�DEH�ZKOHNLSHLJ�ETG�JEH�GKUH�KMJFKL�KR�PHJHNSFLFLZ�VEHJEHN�JEFG�LKJFIH�JK�JEH�NHSTFLFLZ�IKLJNTIJKNG�FG�STPH�Y[l�AFC�gQYUFGEFLZ�LKJFIH�FL�T�UHZTU�LHVGMTMHN�FL�ZHLHNTU�IFNIQUTJFKL�FL�JEH�TNHT�VEHNH�JEH�VKNW�FG�JK�YH�PKLHm�AFFC�STFUFLZ�T�LKJFIH�JK�JEHGH�IKLJNTIJKNGm�KN�AFFFC�GHLPFLZ�T�LKJFIH�JK�JEHGH�IKLJNTIJKNG�Y[�RTIGFSFUH�KN�KJEHN�HUHIJNKLFI�SHTLĜ�nKN�MQNMKGHG�KR�JEFG�GQYGHIJFKL�ÀCAICX�oHcQFJTYU[�PFGJNFYQJHo�SHTLG�JETJ�T�GJTJH�TZHLI[�KN�UKITU�ZKOHNLSHLJ�GKUFIFJFLZ�YFPG�ST[�LKJ�RTOKN�IHNJTFL�IKLJNTIJKNG�KL�JEH�TMMNKMNFTJH�GSTUU�VKNWG�NKGJHN�KOHN�KJEHN�IKLJNTIJKNG�KL�JEH�TMMNKMNFTJH�GSTUU�VKNWG�NKGJHN�VEK�MHNRKNS�GFSFUTN�GHNOFIHĜ�APC�a�IKLJNTIJ�TVTNPHP�RNKS�T�GSTUU�VKNWG�NKGJHN�QLPHN�JEFG�GHIJFKL�LHHP�LKJ�YH�TPOHNJFGHP̂�AHC�eSSHPFTJHU[�TRJHN�TL�TVTNP�FG�STPHX�JEH�YFP�cQKJTJFKLG�KYJTFLHP�GETUU�YH�NHIKNPHPX�KMHL�JK�MQYUFI�FLGMHIJFKLX�TLP�TOTFUTYUH�Y[�JHUHMEKLH�FLcQFN[̂�A_C�eL�UFHQ�KR�TVTNPFLZ�IKLJNTIJG�QLPHN�GQYGHIJFKL�ÀC�KR�JEFG�GHIJFKLX�T�GJTJH�TZHLI[�KN�TQJEKNF]HP�UKITU�ZKOHNLSHLJ�ST[�TVTNP�T�IKLJNTIJ�RKN�VKNWX�IKLGJNQIJFKLX�TUJHNTJFKLX�NHMTFNX�KN�FSMNKOHSHLJ�MNKdHIJG�HGJFSTJHP�JK�IKGJ�UHGG�JETL�JEFNJ[pRFOH�JEKQGTLP�PKUUTNG�QGFLZ�JEH�UFSFJHP�MQYUFI�VKNWG�MNKIHGG�MNKOFPHP�QLPHN�JEFG�GQYGHIJFKL̂�gQYUFI�VKNWG�MNKdHIJG�TVTNPHP�QLPHN�JEFG�GQYGHIJFKL�TNH�H\HSMJ�RNKS�JEH�KJEHN�NHcQFNHSHLJG�KR�JEH�GSTUU�VKNWG�NKGJHN�MNKIHGG�MNKOFPHP�QLPHN�GQYGHIJFKL�ÀC�KR�JEFG�GHIJFKL�TLP�TNH�H\HSMJ�RNKS�JEH�NHcQFNHSHLJ�JETJ�IKLJNTIJG�YH�TVTNPHP�TRJHN�TPOHNJFGHSHLJ�TG�MNKOFPHP�QLPHN�hib�*+,-.,-/-̂�nKN�UFSFJHP�MQYUFI�VKNWG�MNKdHIJGX�T�GJTJH�TZHLI[�KN�TQJEKNF]HP�UKITU�ZKOHNLSHLJ�GETUU�GKUFIFJ�HUHIJNKLFI�KN�VNFJJHL�cQKJTJFKLG�RNKS�T�SFLFSQS�KR�JENHH�IKLJNTIJKNG�RNKS�JEH�TMMNKMNFTJH�GSTUU�VKNWG�NKGJHN�TLP�GETUU�TVTNP�JEH�IKLJNTIJ�JK�JEH�UKVHGJ�NHGMKLGFYUH�YFPPHN�TG�PHRFLHP�QLPHN�hib�*+,-.,-/-̂�aRJHN�TL�TVTNP�FG�STPHX�JEH�cQKJTJFKLG�GETUU�YH�KMHL�JK�MQYUFI�FLGMHIJFKL�TLP�TOTFUTYUH�Y[�HUHIJNKLFI�NHcQHGĴ�a�GJTJH�TZHLI[�KN�TQJEKNF]HP�UKITU�ZKOHNLSHLJ�GETUU�TJJHSMJ�JK�PFGJNFYQJH�



���������	
�������
��������
����������������	
��
����������������� ��

 !! "#$%&#&'(�) "�*&+&#',�!$-*&.�/ "0(�!" 1'.#(�'2$&#3-*4�3+ %5�. %#"3.# "(�/&**&%5�# �!'") "+�&%�#6'�5' 5"3!6&.�3"'3� )�#6'�/ "07�8�(#3#'�35'%.4� "�3$#6 "&9',�* .3*�5 :'"%+'%#�(63**�+3&%#3&%�3�*&(#� )�#6'�. %#"3.# "(�. %#3.#',�3%,�#6'�. %#"3.#(�3/3",',�,$"&%5�#6'�!"':& $(�#/'%#4;) $"�+ %#6(�$%,'"�#6'�*&+&#',�!$-*&.�/ "0(�!" .'((<�&%.*$,&%5�#6'�%3+'� )�#6'�. %#"3.# "<�#6'�. %#"3.# "=(�"'5&(#"3#& %�%$+-'"<�#6'�3+ $%#� )�#6'�. %#"3.#<�3�-"&')�,'(."&!#& %� )�#6'�#4!'� )�/ "0�!'") "+',<�3%,�#6'�,3#'�#6'�. %#"3.#�/3(�3/3",',7�> "�*&+&#',�!$-*&.�/ "0(�!" 1'.#(<�3�(#3#'�35'%.4� "�3$#6 "&9',�* .3*�5 :'"%+'%#�+34�/3&:'�#6'�!34+'%#�3%,�!'") "+3%.'�- %,�"'2$&"'+'%#(� )�.63!#'"�?@ABC�DEF�3%,�#6'�"'#3&%35'�"'2$&"'+'%#(� )�.63!#'"�GBAHC�DEF<�#6'"'-4�3(($+&%5�#6'�*&3-&*&#4�) "�#6'�. %#"3.# "=(�% %!34+'%#� )�*3- "'"(<�+'.63%&.(<�($-. %#"3.# "(<�+3#'"&3*�!'"( %(<�($!!*&'"(<�3%,�#3I'(�&+! (',�$%,'"�J&#*'�CH�DEF�#63#�+34�-'�,$'�)" +�#6'�. %#"3.# "�) "�#6'�*&+&#',�!$-*&.�/ "0(�!" 1'.#<�6 /':'"�#6'�(#3#'�35'%.4� "�3$#6 "&9',�* .3*�5 :'"%+'%#�(63**�63:'�#6'�"&56#� )�"'. :'"4�353&%(#�#6'�. %#"3.# "�) "�3%4�!34+'%#(�+3,'� %�#6'�. %#"3.# "=(�-'63*)7�KLM�J6'�-"'30&%5� )�3%4�!" 1'.#�&%# �$%&#(� "�3.. +!*&(6&%5�3%4�!" 1'.#(�-4�!63('(�&(�!" 6&-&#',�&)�&#�&(�, %'�) "�#6'�!$"! ('� )�3: &,&%5�#6'�+3I&+$+�, **3"�3+ $%#� )�3�. %#"3.#�#63#�+34�-'�*'#�$(&%5�#6'�(+3**�/ "0(�" (#'"�!" .'((� "�*&+&#',�!$-*&.�/ "0(�!" .'((7�KNMK3M�8�(#3#'�35'%.4� "�3$#6 "&9',�* .3*�5 :'"%+'%#�+34�$('�#6'�*&+&#',�!$-*&.�/ "0(�!" .'((� )�($-('.#& %�KOM� )�#6&(�('.#& %�# �( *&.&#�3%,�3/3",�(+3**�/ "0(�" (#'"�. %#"3.#(�# �(+3**�-$(&%'(('(�#63#�3"'�"'5&(#'"',�. %#"3.# "(�/&#6�5" ((�"':'%$'(�$%,'"� %'�+&**& %�, **3"(�3%%$3**4�3(�"'! "#',� %�#6'&"�)','"3*�#3I�"'#$"%7�K-M�8�(#3#'�35'%.4� "�3$#6 "&9',�* .3*�5 :'"%+'%#�+34�3, !#�3,,&#& %3*�!" .',$"'(�# �'%. $"35'�(+3**�-$(&%'(('(�#63#�3"'�"'5&(#'"',�. %#"3.# "(�/&#6�5" ((�"':'%$'(�$%,'"�#/ �6$%,"',�)&)#4�#6 $(3%,�, **3"(�3%%$3**4�3(�"'! "#',� %�#6'&"�)','"3*�#3I�"'#$"%(�# �($-+&#�2$ #3#& %(� "�-&,(� %�(+3**�/ "0(�" (#'"�. %#"3.#(7�KPM�8(�$(',�&%�#6&(�('.#& %<�Q(#3#'�35'%.4Q�+'3%(�#6'�,'!3"#+'%#� )�'%#'"!"&('�('":&.'(<�#6'�(#3#'�!3"0(�3%,�"'."'3#& %�. ++&((& %<�#6'�,'!3"#+'%#� )�%3#$"3*�"'( $".'(<�#6'�,'!3"#+'%#� )�)&(6�3%,�/&*,*&)'<�#6'�,'!3"#+'%#� )�#"3%(! "#3#& %<�3%4�&%(#&#$#& %� )�6&56'"�',$.3#& %�3(�,')&%',�$%,'"�DEF�HCRASBABSG<�3%,�3%4� #6'"�(#3#'�35'%.4�,'*'53#',�3$#6 "&#4�-4�#6'�,'!3"#+'%#� )�'%#'"!"&('�('":&.'(�# �'%535'�&%�. %(#"$.#& %<�-$&*,&%5<�"'% :3#& %<�"'+ ,'*&%5<�3*#'"3#& %<�&+!" :'+'%#<� "�"'!3&"�3.#&:&#&'(7�TUV�?@ACBABHB�WXYZ[Z\Z][̂A�_%*'((�#6'�. %#'I#�.*'3"*4�"'2$&"'(� #6'"/&('<�#6'�,')&%&#& %(�&%�#6&(�('.#& %�(63**�3!!*4�#6" $56 $#�#6&(�.63!#'"7�K̀M�Qa#3#'�35'%.4Q�+'3%(�3%4�,'!3"#+'%#<�35'%.4<�. ++&((& %<�-$"'3$<� ))&.'<� "�3%4� #6'"�'%#&#4� "�3$#6 "&#4� )�#6'�(#3#'�5 :'"%+'%#7�KbM�Qc .3*�35'%.4Q�+'3%(�3%4�.&#4�3%,�3%4�# /%<�. $%#4<�(!'.&3*�,&(#"&.#<�+$%&.&!3*�. "! "3#& %<�35'%.4<�! "#�,&(#"&.#� "�3$#6 "&#4<� "�! *&#&.3*�($-,&:&(& %� )�3%4�#4!'<� "�3%4� #6'"�'%#&#4� "�3$#6 "&#4� )�* .3*�5 :'"%+'%#�&%�. "! "3#'�) "+� "� #6'"/&('7�KOM�Qa!'.&3*�,&(#"&.#Q�+'3%(�3�* .3*�$%&#� )�5 :'"%+'%#<� #6'"�#63%�3�.&#4<�# /%<� "�. $%#4<�3$#6 "&9',�-4�*3/�# �!'") "+�3�(&%5*'�)$%.#& %� "�3�*&+&#',�%$+-'"� )�)$%.#& %(<�3%,�&%.*$,&%5�-$#�% #�*&+&#',�# <�/3#'";('/'"�,&(#"&.#(<�&""&53#& %�,&(#"&.#(<�)&"'�,&(#"&.#(<�(.6  *�,&(#"&.#(<�. ++$%&#4�. **'5'�,&(#"&.#(<�6 (!&#3*�,&(#"&.#(<�#"3%(! "#3#& %�,&(#"&.#(<�3%,�+'#" ! *&#3%�+$%&.&!3*�. "! "3#& %(� "53%&9',�$%,'"�.63!#'"�?dAdC�DEF7�KLM�Q85'%.4Q�+'3%(�- #6�(#3#'�3%,�* .3*�35'%.&'(�3%,�(!'.&3*�,&(#"&.#(�3(�,')&%',�&%�($-('.#& %(�K̀M<�KbM<�3%,�KOM� )�#6&(�('.#& %7�KNM�Q8".6&#'.#$"3*�3%,�'%5&%''"&%5�('":&.'(Q� "�Q!" )'((& %3*�('":&.'(Q�+'3%(�!" )'((& %3*�('":&.'(�"'%,'"',�-4�3%4�!'"( %<� #6'"�#63%�3(�3%�'+!* 4''� )�#6'�35'%.4<�. %#"3.#&%5�# �!'") "+�3.#&:&#&'(�/&#6&%�#6'�(. !'� )�#6'�5'%'"3*�,')&%&#& %� )�!" )'((& %3*�!"3.#&.'�&%�.63!#'"(�SCABC<�̀e7LO<� "�SCA@G�DEF7�KPM�Qf'"( %Q�+'3%(�3%4�&%,&:&,$3*<� "53%&93#& %<�5" $!<�3(( .&3#& %<�!3"#%'"(6&!<�)&"+<�1 &%#�:'%#$"'<�. "! "3#& %<� "�3%4�. +-&%3#& %�#6'"' )7�KgM�QE %($*#3%#Q�+'3%(�3%4�!'"( %�!" :&,&%5�!" )'((& %3*�('":&.'(�/6 �&(�% #�3%�'+!* 4''� )�#6'�35'%.4�) "�/6&.6�#6'�('":&.'(�3"'�!" :&,',7�KeM�Q8!!*&.3#& %Q�+'3%(�3�. +!*'#',�(#3#'+'%#� )�2$3*&)&.3#& %(�# 5'#6'"�/&#6�3�"'2$'(#�# �-'�. %(&,'"',�) "�#6'�3/3",� )� %'� "�+ "'�. %#"3.#(�) "�!" )'((& %3*�('":&.'(7��TUV�?@ACBAB?B�hiX[jkl̂�mXnoZmXpX[\�Y]m�qm]YX̂ Ẑ][rs�̂XmtZjX̂ hutr[jX�qovsZjr\Z][A�w3.6�35'%.4�(63**�!$-*&(6�&%�3,:3%.'�#63#�35'%.4=(�"'2$&"'+'%#�) "�!" )'((& %3*�('":&.'(7�J6'�3%% $%.'+'%#�(63**�(#3#'�. %.&('*4�#6'�5'%'"3*�(. !'�3%,�%3#$"'� )�#6'�!" 1'.#� "�/ "0�) "�/6&.6�#6'�('":&.'(�3"'�"'2$&"',�3%,�#6'�3,,"'((� )�3�"'!"'('%#3#&:'� )�#6'�35'%.4�/6 �.3%�!" :&,'�)$"#6'"�,'#3&*(7�8%�35'%.4�+34�. +!*4�/&#6�#6&(�('.#& %�-4x�K̀M�f$-*&(6&%5�3%�3%% $%.'+'%#� %�'3.6� ..3(& %�/6'%�!" )'((& %3*�('":&.'(�!" :&,',�-4�3�. %($*#3%#�3"'�"'2$&"',�-4�#6'�35'%.4y� "�KbM�3%% $%.&%5�5'%'"3**4�# �#6'�!$-*&.�&#(�!" 1'.#',�"'2$&"'+'%#(�) "�3%4�.3#'5 "4� "�#4!'� )�!" )'((& %3*�('":&.'(7�z�S@CS�j�GS�{�?A|�� � �



 

1 

  

XIII. PURCHASING 

 A. NON-TRAVEL RELATED CREDIT CARD USE 

Policy Statement and Use. An ORCAA credit card is typically used to procure obtain small dollar 
amount goods and services. The credit card is intended to promote purchasing buying efficiency, 
flexibility, and convenience. Purchases from vendors that accept credit cards, where ORCAA does not 
have an established account, may be charged to the credit card.  
 
Limitations on the use of credit cards include the following: 
 

• The credit card can only be used to purchasefor goods and services for the agency. (*See 
Below.) 

• Each employee using their credit card must ensure that purchases with the credit card comply 
with follow all applicable laws, rules, and regulations.  

• The aggregate limit for credit card purchases for each credit card holder is currently $1,000. 
The Executive Director is the only one that can grant exceptions to this amount and usually on 
a temporary basis, such as new employee training.  

• Avoid using the credit card on purchases where ORCAA has an established account with the 
vendor. 

• The ORCAA employee, whose name is on the card, is the only person entitled to use the card. 

• Improper use of the card can be considered misappropriation of agency funds, which may 
result in disciplinary action up to and including termination. 

• Any personal charges on the card could be considered misappropriation of funds. If an agency 
card is accidentally used for personal purchase, the employee will be expected to provide 
payment, in full, by check, payable to the bank.  

 
*Examples of Allowable Goods and Services:  

• Vehicle Fuel,  

• Lodging,  

• Auto Rentals,  

• Agency Vehicle Maintenance,  

• Meals; and,  

• Training/Registration Fees, 

• Airfare, with prior approval from the Executive Director.  
 

Any other use, for any other reason, would require prior approval from the director. Office Supply 
needs should be directed to ORCAA’s designated staff person for supply ordering. Computer 
related purchases should be directed to the Network Administrator.  

 
Examples of Credit Card Restrictions. The credit card may not be used to: 
 

• Obtain cash advances. 

• Make personal purchases. 

• Purchase materials or services from any member of the ORCAA employee’s immediate family. 

• Purchase equipment, materials, or supplies restricted by policies, guidelines or contractual 
agreements. 

• Purchase airfare unless prior written approval is obtained from the Executive Director. 
 



 

2 

 Safeguarding the Credit Card. Credit cards and account numbers must be safeguarded against 
loss, theft, and unauthorized use. Cards should be kept by the ORCAA employee in a secure 

location. 
 
Payment of the Credit Card Bill. ORCAA strives to make payments to our vendors in a timely 
mannerpromptly. In order tTo avoid a late payment, please make it a priority to review your monthly 
statements upon receipt. 
 
ORCAA retains the right of any rebate received on purchases. 
 
Reconciling Credit Card Transactions. The credit card provider will send each ORCAA employee a 
statement that displays detailed transactions made during the current billing cycle. Responsibility for 
reconciliation of the statement rests with the ORCAA employee. The ORCAA employee should secure 
and retain keep documentation (detailed receipt) supporting purchases charged to the credit card and 
submit with the reconciled statement on a monthly basis.  
 
ORCAA employees should immediately notify the Administrative Services Manager of any items in 
dispute. 
 
Reporting Lost or Stolen Cards. If a credit card is lost or stolen, employees should immediately 
notify the credit card provider at 1-888-449-2273 (24 24-hour line) and the Administrative Services 
Manager, and/or the Executive Director. 
 
Surrender of ORCAA Credit Card. A cardholder must surrender his or her card upon termination of 
employment or continued misuse. At this point, no further use of the account is authorized. 
 
All employees receiving a credit card will complete, sign and return ORCAA’s Credit Card User 
Agreement found in the Appendix. 

 B. SUPPLIES, GOODS AND SERVICES 

It shall be the policy of ORCAA to purchase buy appropriate supplies, equipment, materials, and 
services necessary for its operation at the least cost of public funds. When purchasing buying goods 
and services, staff will make reasonable efforts to find the most economic and cost cost-effective 
option available. For capital purchases not in the budget and not considered to be part of a budgeted 
line item, the Executive Director will bring the proposed expenditure to the ORCAA Board for their 
approval. 
 
Order to proceed follow when making a purchase. The hierarchy when purchasing is as follows: 
 

• Have the vendor bill us, or establish a new account with the vendor. 

• ORCAA will provide the vendor with a Purchase Order. (See Administrative Service Manager). 

• Use the agency credit card. 
 
For items not budgeted, Prior prior approval from the Executive Director or your supervisor is 
required. in all instances. 
 
When possible and feasible, ORCAA shall utilize recyclable materials and purchase goods containing 
recycled materials. In order tTo make purchases in a systematic, uniform manner, the following 
guidelines shall be followed. 
 

• The Agency shall enter into or utilize existing intergovernmental agreements when available to 
obtain greater economy and efficiency from larger procurement volume. ORCAA entered into 



 

3 

 an agreement with Thurston CountyMunicipal Research & Services Center (MRSC) in 
DecemberJune 20018 for the purpose of accessing their Small Works and Consulting Roster 
due to our applicability to the Public Works Law as referenced in RCW 39.04. 
 

• A Petty Cash Fund of $200 is available for the single purchase of miscellaneous items totaling 
$20 or less. Prior approval must be obtained, including the need to ensure that funds are 
available for reimbursement. All gasoline purchases shall be made using the ORCAA VISA 
credit card. 

 

• Single purchases of goods or services totaling less than $500 (other than expendable office 
supplies) shall have prior approval from the employee’s immediate supervisor. 

 

• All single purchases (other than expendable office supplies) totaling $500 or more shall have 
prior approval from the Executive Director. 

 

• When intergovernmental purchasing agreements are not available, vendor selection choice 
shall be based on price, reliability, product, and service quality. If a capital purchase or service 
is determined to be available only through a sole source vendor, the normal bidding process is 
not required, but a negotiated price with the vendor is preferred. To assure that funds are 
expended spent in a cost-effective manner, the following procedures shall be followed: 

 
o Purchases of less than $499—No price quotes or bids required. 
o Purchases of $500 to $2499—Two verbal price quotations required. 
o Purchases of $2,500 to $9,999—Three verbal price quotations required. 
o Purchases of $10,000 to $24,999—Three written price quotations required. 
o Purchases exceeding $25,000—Formal bid procedures shall be followed. This may 

include public notice in local paper for invitation to bid. At a minimum, advertising will 
occur on ORCAA’s website. 

 
The above amounts refer to a single purchase of goods or services. 

 

• Purchase orders shall be utilized used when required by a vendor. The Executive Director will 
approve Aall purchase orders shall be approved by the Executive Director prior to ordering. A 
copy is sent to the vendor, all other copies shall be given to the Administrative Services 
Manager. 

 
Occasions may arise when competition among potential vendors is not possible for a particular 
procurement. These situations may occur: a) when there is clearly and legitimately only one source 
capable of supplying the subject matter; b) when there are special facilities or market conditions that 
result in only one source; c) in the event of emergencies; and d) when there is only one source 
capable of supplying the subject matter in a timely fashion such that seeking competitive prices would 
be impractical. 
 
Purchases may be made directly from a sole source vendor without soliciting other bids or quotes. 
 
In the event the material, equipment, vehicles, supplies, or services are available from only one 
supplier, written documentation demonstrating proving the appropriateness of sole source 
procurement should be submitted given to and approved by the Executive Director. When the total 
expected cost exceeds fifty thousand ($50,000) dollars, ORCAA’s attorney will also be involved with 
sole source justifications. Except in the event case of an emergency, the contract and the basis for the 
exception from competitive procurement must be recorded and open to public inspection immediately 
after its award. 



 

4 

  
When the purchase exceeds seventy seventy-five thousand ($75,000) dollars, ORCAA’s Board of 

Directors will determine, by resolution, that there is only one source and authorize the Executive 
Director to conduct negotiations as appropriate as to price, delivery, and terms. The resolution will 
recite the factual basis for the exception for the competitive procurement. Such justification is subject 
to the review of ORCAA’s attorney.  

 









Inspections Completed
Between 10/5/2018 and 11/8/2018

Insp. Date Source NameFile #Inspection Type Location Warning NOV Issued
JAD

10/30/2018 CROWN CORK & SEAL CO INC152Driveby OLYMPIA

MS
10/11/2018 SHELTON ASPHALT PLANT926Full Compliance Evaluation SHELTON

10/26/2018 LAKESIDE INDUSTRIES - DURGIN RD291Full Compliance Evaluation OLYMPIA

10/30/2018 CROWN CORK & SEAL CO INC152Source Test OLYMPIA

10/31/2018 PACIFIC COAST FIBER FUELS LLC1200Source Test SHELTON

TG
10/17/2018 SILVER SPRINGS ORGANICS LLC767Driveby RAINIER

10/31/2018 PACIFIC COAST FIBER FUELS LLC1200Source Test SHELTON

11/06/2018 BLACK LAKE RESOURCES INC784Full Compliance Evaluation OLYMPIA

Page 1 of 1Printed 11/8/2018 4:24:20 PM

1



Complaint Report for period from 10/5/2018 to 11/8/2018

Date Source City Smoke Odor Open Fire OtherDust WoodstovFormalRec'd Oncall Online

AMFReferred to:

11/01/2018 Richard K Leffler Shelton JW

11/05/2018 GREEN FREEDOM LLC ELMA TG

MSReferred to:

10/08/2018 Juan Roberto BELFAIR JW

10/08/2018 unknown Olympia JW

10/15/2018 PACIFIC VENEER ABERDEEN JW

10/16/2018 SILVER SPRINGS ORGANICS LLC RAINIER JW

10/17/2018 Paul Kandris Rochester MS

10/17/2018 Ronald Bruce Madison Shelton JW

10/17/2018 SILVER SPRINGS ORGANICS LLC RAINIER JW

10/17/2018 SILVER SPRINGS ORGANICS LLC RAINIER JW

10/18/2018 known Source FLM

10/18/2018 Robert Stagner Tenino MS

10/21/2018 Karen and Frederick Smith Ocean Shores JW

10/22/2018 Neighbor Olympia JW

10/23/2018 Lynne Vanier Rochester MS

10/29/2018 John and Diana Kubena Lacey MS

11/01/2018 Landlord Grapeview JW

11/08/2018 GREEN FREEDOM LLC ELMA MS

RTMReferred to:

10/10/2018 KFG OAKVILLE RTM

10/16/2018 KFG OAKVILLE RTM

10/23/2018 Robert Berschauer Olympia RTM

10/25/2018 Terry A & Cheryl M Larson Olympia RTM

10/26/2018 KFG OAKVILLE RTM

10/30/2018 Debra Moore Olympia JW

11/01/2018 KFG OAKVILLE RTM

TGReferred to:

Thursday, November 8, 2018 Page 1 of 2

2



Date Source City Smoke Odor Open Fire OtherDust WoodstovFormalRec'd Oncall Online

10/05/2018 Lydia Pagaduan Shelton TG

10/15/2018 Ken Brogan, Commercial Property, 
LLC

Olympia MS

10/17/2018 David & Siriporn Atkins Olympia TG

10/17/2018 Travis Brown Rochester MS

10/17/2018 Uknown Olympia JW

10/18/2018 Daniela Hicks Olympia TG

10/18/2018 Sharon & David Langford Olympia TG

10/21/2018 Neighbor's fire Olympia JW

10/22/2018 Rosella Dalebout Olympia RTM

10/23/2018 Timothy Isaac Allyn TG

10/24/2018 Cory & Jaime Hench Rochester TG

10/25/2018 John Burtch Olympia

11/04/2018 Outdoor Burning Air Quality Olympia JW

11/06/2018 Joseph & Lynn Fleming Port Townsend TG

11/06/2018 Outdoor burning JW

11/06/2018 Resident(s) Olympia TG

Thursday, November 8, 2018 Page 2 of 2

3



Asbestos Permit Status Report

Permit # Address City Status
Completion Date Actual 

CompletionRec'dStaff

17ASB006003 1815 Marine Drive Other:  fireproofing paints 12/31/2018Port Angeles12/13/2017

17ASB006007 	PSE-all counties Annual - limited of 260 linear or 160 squa 12/31/2018Olympia12/18/2017

18ASB006018 4213 Lagoon Dr 1/16/2018Tokeland12/29/2017

18ASB006026 1730 Darcy Ln SE must be complete no later than 1/8/19 1/10/2019Olympia1/8/2018KJW

18ASB006063 208 18th Avenue SW 4/6/2018Olympia2/20/2018KJW

18ASB006069 Capital Campus Other:  boiiler/furnance, duct insulation, fi 12/31/2018Olympia2/21/2018

18ASB006097 1920 Abernethy Rd NE Other: exhaust hood, fire doors, electrical 7/31/2018Lacey3/7/2018KJW

18ASB006148 101 Sargison Loop Paper App - no survey w/app. 5/31/2018Shelton4/16/2018

18ASB006178 700 Isreal Rd They need completion date, contractor inf 5/7/2019Tumwater5/7/2018MS

18ASB006183 2637 45th Ave SE Permit cannot go beyond May 14-2019 9/9/2019Olympia5/14/2018

18ASB006188 1835 Circle Loop SE Completion date can be no later than 5/1 6/15/2019Lacey5/16/2018

18ASB006189 3900 Lindsay Hill Rd completion date can be no later than 5/17 5/26/2019Quilcene5/17/2018PFM

18ASB006193 Water System - Piping completion date can be no later than 5/21 5/30/2019Ocean Park5/21/2018MS

18ASB006205 1439 4th Street Other Material:  GWB...joint tapping and 11/26/2018Cosmopolis6/1/2018

18ASB006219 222 Wynoochee Ave ER letter sent - water damage to popcorn 6/17/2018Montesano6/11/2018MS

18ASB006245 220 Alder St Other Material:  Roofing, 	Magnesite Floor 11/30/2018Sequim7/2/2018

18ASB006248 111 Bethel Street NE 7/5/18 Derica called.  Filing amendment t 9/11/2018Olympia7/2/2018

18ASB006260 7000 Pacific Ave SE "We will work on this as we can. Primarily 12/31/2018Olympia7/16/2018

18ASB006266 505 North F Street Other Materials:  boiler/furnace, asbestos 12/31/2018Aberdeen7/18/2018

18ASB006268 2461 East Beach Road Other Materials:  	Mastic, electrical panel 12/31/2018Port  Angeles7/19/2018

18ASB006269 	875 East Beach Road Other Material: window glazing. 12/31/2018Port  Angeles7/19/2018

18ASB006270 	814 Lake Crescent Road Other Material:  Leveling compound, wind 12/31/2018Port  Angeles7/19/2018

Thursday, November 8, 2018 Page 1 of 5

4



Permit # Address City Status
Completion Date Actual 

CompletionRec'dStaff

18ASB006271 1403 East Beach Road Other Material:  Mastic 12/31/2018Port  Angeles7/19/2018

18ASB006272 452 North Shore Road Other Material:  	Window caulking, windo 12/31/2018Amanda Park7/19/2018

18ASB006273 	75 & 76 Lake View Road Other Materials: Window putty & assume 12/31/2018Amanda Park7/19/2018

18ASB006274 	314 North Shore Road Other Materials:  Window caulking,  assu 12/31/2018Amanda Park7/19/2018

18ASB006278 511 North B Street 10/10/2018Aberdeen7/24/2018

18ASB006292 1025 Union Ave SE Other: Mastic 12/31/2018Olympia8/1/2018

18ASB006322 	8 View Point Lane Other:  Window glazing, electrical panels 12/31/2018Port  Angeles8/21/2018

18ASB006323 604 North Shore Road 12/31/2018Amanda Park8/21/2018

18ASB006324 606 North Shore Road Other:  Window caulking and roofing seal 12/31/2018Amanda Park8/21/2018

18ASB006325 250 North Shore Road Other:  Window putty, roofing tar sealant, 12/31/2018Amanda Park8/21/2018

18ASB006326 	991 North Shore Road Other:  roofing, Mastic, window and door 12/31/2018Amanda Park8/21/2018

18ASB006327 	17 View Point Lane Other:  Roof sealant 12/31/2018Amanda Park8/21/2018

18ASB006328 Preachers Point on Lake Ozette Other:  mastic, sink undercoating, roofing 12/31/2018Forks8/21/2018

18ASB006329 East Shore Lake Ozette Other:  Mastic 12/31/2018Forks8/21/2018

18ASB006330 413 Lilly Rd NE Keith Deline - Project Mgr. 360 4937234 9/10/2018Olympia8/22/2018

18ASB006339 210 11th Ave SE Other:  	Black Mastic on CMU Block Wall. 10/5/2018Olympia8/29/2018

18ASB006340 1503 5th Ave SW other material:  	duct tape. 9/21/2018 10/4/2018Olympia8/29/2018

18ASB006348 716 Dennis St SE#102 edenvirollc@gmail.com 9/5/2018Tumwater9/3/2018RTM

18ASB006357 880 Russell Rd 10/2/2018Forks9/11/2018

18ASB006364 1831 Bel Air Ave 10/1/2018Aberdeen9/13/2018

18ASB006368 1026 Lilly Road Req't start date of 9/17/18 10/5/2018Olympia9/14/2018

18ASB006371 156 East Price St 9/18/18 Just link asb notificationto demo t 10/1/2019Port Hadlock9/14/2018

18ASB006372 799 Mariner Ct Supervising removal KD & S Environmen 1/15/2019Ocean Shores9/14/2018

18ASB006374 1124 Wheeler Ave Other Material:  ceiling, skirting. 11/10/2018Hoquiam9/17/2018

18ASB006380 4840 Archer Dr SE 10/2/2018Olympia9/21/2018

Thursday, November 8, 2018 Page 2 of 5

5



Permit # Address City Status
Completion Date Actual 

CompletionRec'dStaff

18ASB006383 749 Sleater Kinney Rd SE 12/31/2018Lacey9/24/2018

18ASB006386 17524 WA St Hwy 507 10/10/2018Yelm9/25/2018

18ASB006389 1320 Marie View St Other Landfill:  LRI Landfill. 10/8/2018Port  Angeles9/27/2018

18ASB006391 1326 Georgiana Paper app 10/20/2018Port  Angeles9/27/2018

18ASB006392 70 Gary St Other:  Actimolite Vermiculite Approx 80 10/10/2018Beaver9/27/2018

18ASB006396 7842 Trails End Drive 1/31/2019Tumwater9/28/2018

18ASB006397 9038 Gallea St NE ER Reqt. 10/2/2018Olympia10/1/2018RTM

18ASB006398 715 Taft St 10/10/2018Port Townsend10/1/2018

18ASB006400 6069 Capitol Blvd Materials:  	removing wood remnants, woo 10/19/2018Tumwater10/2/2018

18ASB006401 817 L St Other Material:  Roofing. 10/31/2018Hoquiam10/2/2018

18ASB006402 24050 N US Hwy 101 Other Disposal site:  Waste Management 10/17/2018Hoodsport10/3/2018

18ASB006404 719 W McByde Ave ER letter rec'd & app'd -  fees paid 10/5/2018Montesano10/4/2018RTM

18ASB006405 2910 Brentwood Dr SE 10/19/2018Lacey10/5/2018

18ASB006407 919 Ramer St *  This is out of sequeance-I moved to wr 10/19/2018Hoquiam10/3/2018

18ASB006408 14826 Terrace Ave SE No ER letter attached.  Emails for on. 10/ 10/10/2018Tenino10/8/2018MS

18ASB006409 446 Wildcat St SE ER Req't. 10/11/2018Lacey10/9/2018TG

18ASB006410 1307 25th Ct NE 10/17/2018Olympia10/8/2018

18ASB006411 4511 17th Ave SE Disposal Site:  	NTSI - Dalles, Oregon.  E 10/12/2018Lacey10/11/2018TG

18ASB006412 5201 Rumac St SE 10/23/2018Lacey10/13/2018

18ASB006413 	Barnes Point Rd at Ranger Station, C/O Catworks Construction 12/31/2018Port Angeles10/15/2018

18ASB006414 2275 St Rt 109 Other Material: Roofing - Start date req't 11/15/2018Hoquiam10/15/2018MS

18ASB006415 1067 Cherry St SW Apt Complex - 2 units  ER Req't. Fee pd. 10/19/2018Olympia10/16/2018TG

18ASB006418 2700 Evergreen Parkway NW-Centr College Contact: Dejay Williamson - 360 1/29/2019Olympia10/17/2018MS

18ASB006419 2917 Sumner Ave ER Req't.   ER Letter rec'd & pd for. 10/26/2018Hoquiam10/18/2018MS

18ASB006420 810 Bracket Rd 11/1/2018Sequim10/18/2018

Thursday, November 8, 2018 Page 3 of 5

6



Permit # Address City Status
Completion Date Actual 

CompletionRec'dStaff

18ASB006421 214 San Mar Drive NE 12/31/2018Olympia10/18/2018

18ASB006422 3102 Simpson Ave Roofing. 11/9/2018Aberdeeen10/22/2018MS

18ASB006423 4546 14th Ave SE ER Req't. Letter rec'd.  Paid. 10/24/2018Lacey10/24/2018MS

18ASB006424 3530 Martin Way flooring 11/9/2018Lacey10/23/2018

18ASB006425 4725 Waldrick Rd SE 11/6/2018Olympia10/23/2018

18ASB006426 4711 Pleasant View Rd No ER letter,  indicates demo, no survey 10/25/2018Olympia10/24/2018TG

18ASB006427 3040 Wild Currant Loop NW, Mod 3 12/7/2018Olympia10/25/2018

18ASB006428 328 W Cota Other Materials:  	Boiler Jacket, Pipe Wra 11/8/2018Olympia10/24/2018

18ASB006429 1110 S Jacob Miller Waste Disposal site unclear. 11/5/2018Port Townsend10/25/2018

18ASB006430 751 W Fairgrounds Rd Other:  fireproofing paints. 11/30/2018Shelton10/24/2018

18ASB006431 4730 NE Northshore Disposal site unclear 11/7/2018Belfair10/25/2018

18ASB006432 3014 Lorne St SW Other Material:  duct insulation 11/5/2018Olympia10/26/2018

18ASB006433 10741 Northshore Rd Sent in on Demo notificationBelfair10/23/2018

18ASB006434 18617 Hilt St SW partial survey? 1/19/2019Rochester10/26/2018

18ASB006435 423 Williamson Dr 11/9/2018Sequim10/29/2018

18ASB006436 209 Cullems St NW They submitted their notification to PSCA 10/16/2018Yelm10/29/2018

18ASB006437 131 East Spruce Dr 11/8/2018Port Ludlow10/29/2018

18ASB006438 10741 NE Northshore Rd 11/14/2018Belfair10/29/2018

18ASB006439 450 2nd St Completed online in South Bend.  Mike S 1/31/2019Raymond11/1/2018MS

18ASB006441 427 Lilly Rd SE So many questions, submitted on residen 11/27/2018Olympia11/2/2018

18ASB006442 105 Broadway Ave, Space F Other:  Window & Door Putty, Silver  Coa 11/14/2018Hoquiam11/5/2018

18ASB006443 411 Tillicum Lane Other:  	122 LF of window and door putty, 11/15/2018Forks11/5/2018

18ASB006444 100 Custer Way SW Paper App.  Sent labs/photos exterior ma 1/1/2019Tumwater11/6/2018MS

18ASB006445 1112 Paulding Street Request start date not 10day.  No ER Re 11/9/2019Raymond11/6/2018

18ASB006446 410 5th Ave SW Walk in - paper app. 11/22/2018Olympia11/8/2018MS

Thursday, November 8, 2018 Page 4 of 5

7



Permit # Address City Status
Completion Date Actual 

CompletionRec'dStaff

18ASB006447 699 Ocean Shores Blvd NW 11/21/2018Ocean Shores11/8/2018

18ASB006448 81 N Fircrest Other material:  roofing 11/23/2018Hoodsport11/8/2018

Thursday, November 8, 2018 Page 5 of 5

8



Demolition Notifications received between 10/5/2018 and 11/8/2018
Permit# Address City Status Asb Survey Asb Permit #Rec'd Staff

18DEM005204  5045 Sunrise Beach Road NW Sent labs only. A Linda Ryan called10/5/2018 Olympia ASBMS

18DEM005205 2014 245th St Project size: 130010/9/2018 Ocean Park ASB

18DEM005206  204 Ranger Dr SE10/10/2018 Olympia ASB

18DEM005207 1436 Linwood Ave SW Walk in Paper App.10/12/2018 Tumwater ASB

18DEM005208 18338 Nicody Ln Walk in10/16/2018 Rochester ASBTG

18DEM005209 410 Wishkah10/17/2018 Aberdeen ASBMS

18DEM005210 820 5th Ave SW New to us contractor. No survey10/18/2018 Olympia ASBMS

18DEM005211 131 E Spruce Steve Kelly Construction Co.  Waiti10/22/2018 Port Ludlow 18ASB006437

18DEM005212 #3 Moxt Street NO survey.10/23/2018 Ocean Shores ASBTG

18DEM005213  209 Cullens Rd Called to get guidance on notificatio10/24/2018 Yelm ASBTG

18DEM005214 2907 Summner Ave10/29/2018 Hoquiam ASB

18DEM005215 70 Gary St10/29/2018 Beaver 18ASB006392

18DEM005216 18617 Hilt St SW10/30/2018 Rochester 18ASB006434

18DEM005217 940 Lawrence Street  "This is for the removal of non load 10/30/2018 Port Townend ASBRTM

18DEM005218 3524 Stoll Road SE New to us Contractor.10/31/2018 Olympia 18ASB006441

18DEM005219 106 8th St SE Paper App - rec'd in US Mail.11/1/2018 Long Beach ASBMS

18DEM005220 311 E Pacific #4 pd $35.00 - left msg @ city of West11/1/2018 Westport ASBMS

18DEM005221 699 Ocean Shores 10/31/18 Rec'd documents & check11/2/2018 Ocean Shores 18ASB006447MS

18DEM005222 411 Tillicum Lane  "The trailer is being abated on Nove11/2/2018 Forks 18ASB006443

18DEM005223 5831 Old Gardiner Rd Project Size: 192.  No survey - to M11/5/2018 Port Townend ASBMS

18DEM005224 11/5/2018 ASBMS

18DEM005225 105 Broadway, Space F11/5/2018 Hoquiam 18ASB006442

18DEM005226 810 Bracket Road11/5/2018 Sequim ASB

Thursday, November 8, 2018 Page 1 of 2

9



Permit# Address City Status Asb Survey Asb Permit #Rec'd Staff

18DEM005227 3911 West Edgewood Dr11/6/2018 Port Angeles ASB

18DEM005228 27306 V St Project size:  1188.11/6/2018 Ocean Park ASB

18DEM005229 100 Custer Way SW Paper App.  Labs only.11/6/2018 Tumwater 18ASB006444MS

18DEM005230  113 Columbia St. NW Project Size: 980 sq ft - Commercial11/6/2018 Olympia ASBTG

18DEM005231 500/506 E Wishkah Project size:  1300011/7/2018 Aberdeen ASB

18DEM005232 4730 NE Northshore Rd  "All asbestos was removed 11/6/2011/8/2018 Belfair ASB

18DEM005233 7930 Pacific Ave Se Walk in - Paper App11/8/2018 Lacey ASBTG

18DEM005234 201 Spruce St Asb present - TG contacted - KCB t11/8/2018 Port Townend ASBTG

Thursday, November 8, 2018 Page 2 of 2

10



Current ORCAA Land Clearing Burn Permit

Expiration # Legal Desc Burn Site Address City Last Name CompanyName PhoneFireDistrict

11/9/2018 4545 337 Lourella Rd Sequim George Dickinson 
Contruction

(360) 461-83

11/18/2018 4567 13125 Reo Rd SE Rainier Glassburn (360) 446-18

11/22/2018 4571 136 Foreman Rd McCleary Scheel (360) 791-14

11/23/2018 4574 16426 Cougar Village Dr 
SE

Yelm Rogers (360) 507-70

11/11/2018 4558 Antler Ct, Lot 41 (corners 
of Antler & Panorama Blvd).

Sequim Northwest Log HomesCFD #3, Sequim

11/22/2018 4570  665 Dryke Rd Sequim Bennett (360) 809-05

11/29/2018 4579  Sec36 T31R04w Corner of Twin Fawn Lane 
and Lotzgesell Rd

Sequim Landmark Excavating (360) 379-66

12/6/2018 4593 S. Bagley Creek Rd Port Angeles Minner *& Company (360) 477-83

12/2/2018 4588  Sec02 T30R08w Lot 7, Survey 24/34 Port Angeles Criel (360) 461-17CFD #4, Joyce

12/5/2018 4592  Sec35 T31R08w 292 Evergreen View Pkwy Port Angeles Dickinson We Dig It (360) 670-60

11/8/2018 4549 15 Arrowhead Lane Elma McFadden (360) 791-62Elma Fire Department

11/24/2018 4524 1220 Monte-Elma Rd Elma City of Elma (360) 482-22

12/6/2018 4594 124 Elma-McCleary Rd Elma Stangland (360) 580-37

Thursday, November 8, 2018 Page 1 of 4

11



Expiration # Legal Desc Burn Site Address City Last Name CompanyName PhoneFireDistrict

11/8/2018 4539  Sec16 T17R08w River Road west of Hill Rd Central Park Skitch (253) 458-28GHFD #2, Central Park - 
Brady

11/8/2018 4548  Sec18 T17R08w 5300 Central Park Drive Aberdeen Williams Shermer Construction (360) 533-58

11/15/2018 4561  Sec08 T25R02W 2275 Duckabush Road Brinnon Should Excavating, 
Inc.

(360) 301-59JFD #4, Brinnon - DO NOT 
ISSUE PERMITS

11/25/2018 4576  Sec24 T29R02w 162 Fairmont Rd Port Townse Connolly (360) 970-78JFD #5, Discovery Bay

12/2/2018 4587  Sec27 T14R09w 418 SR 105 Raymond Thiessen (360) 934-56PFD #3, Raymond

11/17/2018 4566 795 SR 4 West Naselle Katyryniuk WSOT (360) 942-20PFD #4, Naselle

11/11/2018 4556 2697 Tokeland Rd Tokeland Cross (360) 267-63PFD #6

12/8/2018 4596 16920 Eugene St SW Rochester Lenzi KCL Excavating Inc (360) 515-63TFD #1, Rochester

11/21/2018 4568  Sec28 T17R02w 10910 Lone Tree Lane SW Olympia Mathis (360) 556-89TFD #11, Littlerock

12/2/2018 4589  Sec09 T16R03w 13441 Halokuntux Ln SW Olympia Fisher (360) 701-84

11/11/2018 4557  Sec09 T15R01W 4612 Skookumchuck Rd 
SE

Tenino Bower (509) 432-45TFD #12, Tenino

11/16/2018 4564  Sec14 T15R01W 19838 Pruett Lane SE Tenino Gary's Bulldozing LLC (360) 456-88

Thursday, November 8, 2018 Page 2 of 4

12



Expiration # Legal Desc Burn Site Address City Last Name CompanyName PhoneFireDistrict

11/10/2018 4554 7932 Hargis St NW Olympia Sanchai (619) 677-67TFD #13, Griffin

11/21/2018 4569  Sec19 T19R02W 5612 Stetson Ct NW Olympia Aikins (253) 732-91

11/23/2018 4573 8840 Steamboat NW Olympia Beckman (360) 866-05

11/30/2018 4583 6820 48th Lane NW Olympia Smith (360) 867-91

11/8/2018 4550  Sec35 T16R02e 17919 Kismet Ln SE Yelm Howerton Jr (253) 405-24TFD #17, Bald Hills

11/11/2018 4559  Sec22 T16R02E 15425 Smith Praire Rd Yelm Howard (360) 960-06TFD #2, Yelm

11/15/2018 4562  Sec13 T16R01E 14547 Martinson Rd SE Yelm Scott (714) 479-44

12/2/2018 4586  Sec13 T16R02E 14217 Rainier View Dr SE Yelm Hora Flamily Homes (253) 508-40

12/2/2018 4585  Sec12 T16R02E 14223 Rainier View Dr SE Yelm Hora Family Homes (253) 508-40

12/5/2018 4590  Sec35 T17R01E 11822 Hobby St SE Yelm Redell (360) 560-17

12/5/2018 4591  Sec T16R02e 14617 Rainier View Dr SE Yelm Justice Construction (253) 310-23

11/14/2018 4560  Sec12 T17R01W 7943 Kamerlyn Hill Lane 
SE

Olympia Coumbs (350) 951-77TFD #3, Lacey

11/17/2018 4565 97810 93rd Ln SE Olympia Paulsen (360) 870-31

11/8/2018 4546  Sec08 T16R01e 13939 Sunny Ct SE Rainier Rainier General 
Development, Inc.

(360) 400-07TFD #4, Rainier

11/29/2018 4577  Sec23 T16R01e 14247 155th Ct SE Yelm Parsons JRP Development (253) 380-76

11/30/2018 4584 13338 Hwy 507 SE Rainier Roger's Tree Service 
LLC

(360) 705-29

Thursday, November 8, 2018 Page 3 of 4

13



Expiration # Legal Desc Burn Site Address City Last Name CompanyName PhoneFireDistrict

11/10/2018 4553  Sec25 T17R02W 1627 105th Ln Se Olympia Olson (360) 539-71TFD #6, East Olympia

11/29/2018 4578  Sec19 T17R01W 9445 Old Hwy 99 SE Olympia Brewer American Pump (360) 507-10

11/9/2018 4552  Sec16 T19R01W 7536 Granite Ln NE Olympia Ellsworth (360) 350-01TFD #8, South Bay

11/15/2018 4563 4509 Shincke Rd NE Olymipa Goodwin (360) 791-49

12/1/2018 4582  Sec16 T19R01N 68th Ave Olympia Myer (360) 970-13

11/9/2018 4551 3434 Delphi Rd SW Olympia Lindbeck (360) 515-02TFD #9, McLane

Thursday, November 8, 2018 Page 4 of 4

14



NOV Monthly Report
For the period 10/5/2018 to 11/8/2018

Name Issued
 by

Regulation(s) NOV 
Issued

Penalty 
Issued

Penalty 
Assessed

Amount 
Suspended

NOV # City Amount 
Paid

PASHA AUTOMOTIVE 
SERVICES - MATT 
RAASCH

3621 TG 11/06/2017 $500.00 03/15/2018GRAYS 
HARBOR

$500.00Rule 6.1.8 Failure to comply with any 
term or condition of an 
Approval Order constitutes 
a violation of this rule and 
is subject to penalties 
pursuant to RCW 70.94.430 
and RCW 70.94.431.

ABERDEEN AM PM3625 TG 11/07/2017 $750.00 01/05/2018GRAYS 
HARBOR

$750.00Rule 6.1.8 Failure to comply with any 
term or condition of an 
Approval Order constitutes 
a violation of this rule and 
is subject to penalties 
pursuant to RCW 70.94.430 
and RCW 70.94.431.

WELCHES3728 PFM 05/08/2018 $250.00 07/30/2018CLALLAM $250.00Rule 6.2.5(a)  It shall be unlawful for any 
person to cause or allow an 
outdoor fire containing 
prohibited materials which 
include but are not limited 
to garbage, dead animals, 
asphalt, petroleum products, 
paints, rubber products, 
plastics, paper, cardboard, 
treated wood, processed 
wood, construction/ 
demolition debris, metal, or 
any substance which when 
burned releases toxic 
emissions, dense smoke, or 
obnoxious odors.  A limited 
amount of paper may be 
used to start the fire.  
ORCAA may allow the 
limited burning of 
prohibited materials for fire 
training.

15



Name Issued
 by

Regulation(s) NOV 
Issued

Penalty 
Issued

Penalty 
Assessed

Amount 
Suspended

NOV # City Amount 
Paid

JAMES FOOD MART3734 TG 06/12/2018 $500.00 08/20/2018MASON $500.00Rule 8.8 All air contaminant sources 
are required to keep any 
process and/or air pollution 
control equipment in good 
operating condition and 
repair.

Rule 6.1.8 Failure to comply with any 
term or condition of an 
Approval Order constitutes 
a violation of this rule and 
is subject to penalties 
pursuant to RCW 70.94.430 
and RCW 70.94.431.

FREEDOM FAMILY 
TRUST

3741 MS 07/20/2018 $2,500.00 10/10/2018THURSTON Rule 6.2.5(a)  It shall be unlawful for any 
person to cause or allow an 
outdoor fire containing 
prohibited materials which 
include but are not limited 
to garbage, dead animals, 
asphalt, petroleum products, 
paints, rubber products, 
plastics, paper, cardboard, 
treated wood, processed 
wood, construction/ 
demolition debris, metal, or 
any substance which when 
burned releases toxic 
emissions, dense smoke, or 
obnoxious odors.  A limited 
amount of paper may be 
used to start the fire.  
ORCAA may allow the 
limited burning of 
prohibited materials for fire 
training.

16



Name Issued
 by

Regulation(s) NOV 
Issued

Penalty 
Issued

Penalty 
Assessed

Amount 
Suspended

NOV # City Amount 
Paid

JOHNSON3747 MS 08/10/2018 $562.00 10/10/2018GRAYS 
HARBOR

Rule 6.3.2(b) It shall be unlawful for any 
person to cause or allow any 
demolition unless the 
property owner or the 
owner’s agent obtains an 
asbestos survey, by an 
AHERA building inspector, 
of the structure.

Rule 6.3.4(a)  It shall be unlawful for any 
person to cause or allow any 
work on an asbestos project 
or demolition unless a 
complete notification, 
including the required fee 
and any additional 
information requested by 
the Control Officer, or 
designee, has been 
submitted to the ORCAA on 
approved forms, in 
accordance with the 
notification period 
requirements contained in 
6.3.4(c) Notification Period.

17



Name Issued
 by

Regulation(s) NOV 
Issued

Penalty 
Issued

Penalty 
Assessed

Amount 
Suspended

NOV # City Amount 
Paid

PANELTECH3755 MS 10/08/2018GRAYS 
HARBOR

Rule 5.1(d) It shall be unlawful for any 
person to cause or allow the 
operation of any source 
subject to the requirements 
of chapter 173-401 WAC 
without complying with the 
provisions of chapter 173-
401 WAC and any permit 
issued under its authority.

40 CFR §63.3360(f) You must determine capture 
efficiency of the capture 
system using the methods in 
40 CFR §63.3360(f). 
(National Emission 
Standards for Hazardous Air 
Pollutants: Paper and Other 
Web Coating 40 CFR Part 
63 Subpart JJJJ)

Condition M10 
11AOP864

The permittee shall verify 
the performance of the 
emissions capture system 
associated with EU-1 and 
EU-3 using one of the 
methodologies listed in the 
condition.

RCW 70.94.161(9)(a) It shall be unlawful for any 
person to operate a 
permitted source in 
violation of any requirement 
of an Air Operating Permit.

18



Name Issued
 by

Regulation(s) NOV 
Issued

Penalty 
Issued

Penalty 
Assessed

Amount 
Suspended

NOV # City Amount 
Paid

OTHON - EVERGREEN 
STATE ABATEMENT, 
LLC

3756 TG 10/11/2018THURSTON Rule 6.3.9(a)  It shall be unlawful for any 
person to cause or allow any 
work on an asbestos project 
unless it is performed by 
persons trained and certified 
in accordance with the 
standards established by the 
Washington State 
Department of Labor and 
Industries, the federal 
Occupational Safety and 
Health Administration, or 
the United States 
Environmental Protection 
Agency (whichever agency 
has jurisdiction) and whose 
certificate is current.  This 
certification requirement 
does not apply to 
individuals who work on 
asbestos projects on their 
own single-family 
residence(s).

Rule 6.3.9(b)(1) It shall be unlawful for any 
person to cause or allow the 
removal of Asbestos-
containing Materials (ACM) 
unless the asbestos project 
is conducted in a controlled 
area, clearly marked by 
barriers and asbestos 
warning signs. Access to the 
controlled area shall be 
restricted to authorized 
personnel only.

19



Name Issued
 by

Regulation(s) NOV 
Issued

Penalty 
Issued

Penalty 
Assessed

Amount 
Suspended

NOV # City Amount 
Paid

Rule 6.3.9(b)(10) It shall be unlawful for any 
person to create or allow a 
condition that results in the 
disturbance, or likely 
disturbance, of Asbestos-
containing Materials (ACM) 
(e.g., not removing all ACM 
in a structure scheduled for 
demolition or partially 
removing ACM and leaving 
remaining ACM in a state 
that makes it more 
susceptible to being 
disturbed, or leaving it on 
the ground, outside and 
open to the environment).

GRAYS HARBOR 
COMMUNITY HOSPITAL

3758 TG 11/01/2018GRAYS 
HARBOR

Rule 3.1(d)  Upon assessment by the 
Agency, annual registration 
fees are due and payable 
and shall be deemed 
delinquent if not fully paid 
within thirty (30) days.  
However, sources classified 
as RC1, RC2, or RC3 shall 
be given the option to pay 
their annual fee in quarterly 
installments.  RC1, RC2, 
and RC3 sources may 
choose to pay their annual 
fees in quarterly 
installments by indicating 
so on the first invoice 
received and remitting 
payment of the first 
installment to the Agency 
along with the duplicate 
copy of the invoice.  
Quarterly installments shall 
be equal to 25% of the total 
annual registration fee and 
shall be due within 30 days 
of each quarter following 
initial assessment by the 
Agency.

20



Name Issued
 by

Regulation(s) NOV 
Issued

Penalty 
Issued

Penalty 
Assessed

Amount 
Suspended

NOV # City Amount 
Paid

ST PETERS HOSPITAL3759 TG 11/01/2018THURSTON Rule 3.1(d)  Upon assessment by the 
Agency, annual registration 
fees are due and payable 
and shall be deemed 
delinquent if not fully paid 
within thirty (30) days.  
However, sources classified 
as RC1, RC2, or RC3 shall 
be given the option to pay 
their annual fee in quarterly 
installments.  RC1, RC2, 
and RC3 sources may 
choose to pay their annual 
fees in quarterly 
installments by indicating 
so on the first invoice 
received and remitting 
payment of the first 
installment to the Agency 
along with the duplicate 
copy of the invoice.  
Quarterly installments shall 
be equal to 25% of the total 
annual registration fee and 
shall be due within 30 days 
of each quarter following 
initial assessment by the 
Agency.

21



Name Issued
 by

Regulation(s) NOV 
Issued

Penalty 
Issued

Penalty 
Assessed

Amount 
Suspended

NOV # City Amount 
Paid

MOBIL3760 TG 11/01/2018CLALLAM Rule 3.1(d)  Upon assessment by the 
Agency, annual registration 
fees are due and payable 
and shall be deemed 
delinquent if not fully paid 
within thirty (30) days.  
However, sources classified 
as RC1, RC2, or RC3 shall 
be given the option to pay 
their annual fee in quarterly 
installments.  RC1, RC2, 
and RC3 sources may 
choose to pay their annual 
fees in quarterly 
installments by indicating 
so on the first invoice 
received and remitting 
payment of the first 
installment to the Agency 
along with the duplicate 
copy of the invoice.  
Quarterly installments shall 
be equal to 25% of the total 
annual registration fee and 
shall be due within 30 days 
of each quarter following 
initial assessment by the 
Agency.

22



Name Issued
 by

Regulation(s) NOV 
Issued

Penalty 
Issued

Penalty 
Assessed

Amount 
Suspended

NOV # City Amount 
Paid

LIBERTY STORE3761 TG 11/01/2018GRAYS 
HARBOR

Rule 3.1(d)  Upon assessment by the 
Agency, annual registration 
fees are due and payable 
and shall be deemed 
delinquent if not fully paid 
within thirty (30) days.  
However, sources classified 
as RC1, RC2, or RC3 shall 
be given the option to pay 
their annual fee in quarterly 
installments.  RC1, RC2, 
and RC3 sources may 
choose to pay their annual 
fees in quarterly 
installments by indicating 
so on the first invoice 
received and remitting 
payment of the first 
installment to the Agency 
along with the duplicate 
copy of the invoice.  
Quarterly installments shall 
be equal to 25% of the total 
annual registration fee and 
shall be due within 30 days 
of each quarter following 
initial assessment by the 
Agency.

23



Name Issued
 by

Regulation(s) NOV 
Issued

Penalty 
Issued

Penalty 
Assessed

Amount 
Suspended

NOV # City Amount 
Paid

SUNSHINE DELI - 
ABERDEEN

3763 TG 11/01/2018GRAYS 
HARBOR

Rule 3.1(d)  Upon assessment by the 
Agency, annual registration 
fees are due and payable 
and shall be deemed 
delinquent if not fully paid 
within thirty (30) days.  
However, sources classified 
as RC1, RC2, or RC3 shall 
be given the option to pay 
their annual fee in quarterly 
installments.  RC1, RC2, 
and RC3 sources may 
choose to pay their annual 
fees in quarterly 
installments by indicating 
so on the first invoice 
received and remitting 
payment of the first 
installment to the Agency 
along with the duplicate 
copy of the invoice.  
Quarterly installments shall 
be equal to 25% of the total 
annual registration fee and 
shall be due within 30 days 
of each quarter following 
initial assessment by the 
Agency.

24



Name Issued
 by

Regulation(s) NOV 
Issued

Penalty 
Issued

Penalty 
Assessed

Amount 
Suspended

NOV # City Amount 
Paid

LACEY SHELL FOOD 
MART

3764 TG 11/01/2018THURSTON Rule 3.1(d)  Upon assessment by the 
Agency, annual registration 
fees are due and payable 
and shall be deemed 
delinquent if not fully paid 
within thirty (30) days.  
However, sources classified 
as RC1, RC2, or RC3 shall 
be given the option to pay 
their annual fee in quarterly 
installments.  RC1, RC2, 
and RC3 sources may 
choose to pay their annual 
fees in quarterly 
installments by indicating 
so on the first invoice 
received and remitting 
payment of the first 
installment to the Agency 
along with the duplicate 
copy of the invoice.  
Quarterly installments shall 
be equal to 25% of the total 
annual registration fee and 
shall be due within 30 days 
of each quarter following 
initial assessment by the 
Agency.

25



Name Issued
 by

Regulation(s) NOV 
Issued

Penalty 
Issued

Penalty 
Assessed

Amount 
Suspended

NOV # City Amount 
Paid

TUMWATER DELI MART3765 TG 11/01/2018THURSTON Rule 3.1(d)  Upon assessment by the 
Agency, annual registration 
fees are due and payable 
and shall be deemed 
delinquent if not fully paid 
within thirty (30) days.  
However, sources classified 
as RC1, RC2, or RC3 shall 
be given the option to pay 
their annual fee in quarterly 
installments.  RC1, RC2, 
and RC3 sources may 
choose to pay their annual 
fees in quarterly 
installments by indicating 
so on the first invoice 
received and remitting 
payment of the first 
installment to the Agency 
along with the duplicate 
copy of the invoice.  
Quarterly installments shall 
be equal to 25% of the total 
annual registration fee and 
shall be due within 30 days 
of each quarter following 
initial assessment by the 
Agency.

26



Name Issued
 by

Regulation(s) NOV 
Issued

Penalty 
Issued

Penalty 
Assessed

Amount 
Suspended

NOV # City Amount 
Paid

SEAVIEW TEXACO3766 TG 11/01/2018PACIFIC Rule 3.1(d)  Upon assessment by the 
Agency, annual registration 
fees are due and payable 
and shall be deemed 
delinquent if not fully paid 
within thirty (30) days.  
However, sources classified 
as RC1, RC2, or RC3 shall 
be given the option to pay 
their annual fee in quarterly 
installments.  RC1, RC2, 
and RC3 sources may 
choose to pay their annual 
fees in quarterly 
installments by indicating 
so on the first invoice 
received and remitting 
payment of the first 
installment to the Agency 
along with the duplicate 
copy of the invoice.  
Quarterly installments shall 
be equal to 25% of the total 
annual registration fee and 
shall be due within 30 days 
of each quarter following 
initial assessment by the 
Agency.

27



Name Issued
 by

Regulation(s) NOV 
Issued

Penalty 
Issued

Penalty 
Assessed

Amount 
Suspended

NOV # City Amount 
Paid

JONS AUTOBODY3767 TG 11/01/2018GRAYS 
HARBOR

Rule 3.1(d)  Upon assessment by the 
Agency, annual registration 
fees are due and payable 
and shall be deemed 
delinquent if not fully paid 
within thirty (30) days.  
However, sources classified 
as RC1, RC2, or RC3 shall 
be given the option to pay 
their annual fee in quarterly 
installments.  RC1, RC2, 
and RC3 sources may 
choose to pay their annual 
fees in quarterly 
installments by indicating 
so on the first invoice 
received and remitting 
payment of the first 
installment to the Agency 
along with the duplicate 
copy of the invoice.  
Quarterly installments shall 
be equal to 25% of the total 
annual registration fee and 
shall be due within 30 days 
of each quarter following 
initial assessment by the 
Agency.

28



Name Issued
 by

Regulation(s) NOV 
Issued

Penalty 
Issued

Penalty 
Assessed

Amount 
Suspended

NOV # City Amount 
Paid

LINCOLN INDUSTRIAL 
CORP INC (PAYNE)

3768 TG 11/01/2018CLALLAM Rule 3.1(d)  Upon assessment by the 
Agency, annual registration 
fees are due and payable 
and shall be deemed 
delinquent if not fully paid 
within thirty (30) days.  
However, sources classified 
as RC1, RC2, or RC3 shall 
be given the option to pay 
their annual fee in quarterly 
installments.  RC1, RC2, 
and RC3 sources may 
choose to pay their annual 
fees in quarterly 
installments by indicating 
so on the first invoice 
received and remitting 
payment of the first 
installment to the Agency 
along with the duplicate 
copy of the invoice.  
Quarterly installments shall 
be equal to 25% of the total 
annual registration fee and 
shall be due within 30 days 
of each quarter following 
initial assessment by the 
Agency.

29



Name Issued
 by

Regulation(s) NOV 
Issued

Penalty 
Issued

Penalty 
Assessed

Amount 
Suspended

NOV # City Amount 
Paid

BELFAIR CLEANERS3769 TG 11/01/2018MASON Rule 3.1(d)  Upon assessment by the 
Agency, annual registration 
fees are due and payable 
and shall be deemed 
delinquent if not fully paid 
within thirty (30) days.  
However, sources classified 
as RC1, RC2, or RC3 shall 
be given the option to pay 
their annual fee in quarterly 
installments.  RC1, RC2, 
and RC3 sources may 
choose to pay their annual 
fees in quarterly 
installments by indicating 
so on the first invoice 
received and remitting 
payment of the first 
installment to the Agency 
along with the duplicate 
copy of the invoice.  
Quarterly installments shall 
be equal to 25% of the total 
annual registration fee and 
shall be due within 30 days 
of each quarter following 
initial assessment by the 
Agency.

30



Name Issued
 by

Regulation(s) NOV 
Issued

Penalty 
Issued

Penalty 
Assessed

Amount 
Suspended

NOV # City Amount 
Paid

LILLIWAUP STORE & 
MOTEL

3770 TG 11/01/2018MASON Rule 3.1(d)  Upon assessment by the 
Agency, annual registration 
fees are due and payable 
and shall be deemed 
delinquent if not fully paid 
within thirty (30) days.  
However, sources classified 
as RC1, RC2, or RC3 shall 
be given the option to pay 
their annual fee in quarterly 
installments.  RC1, RC2, 
and RC3 sources may 
choose to pay their annual 
fees in quarterly 
installments by indicating 
so on the first invoice 
received and remitting 
payment of the first 
installment to the Agency 
along with the duplicate 
copy of the invoice.  
Quarterly installments shall 
be equal to 25% of the total 
annual registration fee and 
shall be due within 30 days 
of each quarter following 
initial assessment by the 
Agency.

31



Name Issued
 by

Regulation(s) NOV 
Issued

Penalty 
Issued

Penalty 
Assessed

Amount 
Suspended

NOV # City Amount 
Paid

PYR PRESERVATION 
SERVICES

3772 TG 11/01/2018JEFFERSON Rule 3.1(d)  Upon assessment by the 
Agency, annual registration 
fees are due and payable 
and shall be deemed 
delinquent if not fully paid 
within thirty (30) days.  
However, sources classified 
as RC1, RC2, or RC3 shall 
be given the option to pay 
their annual fee in quarterly 
installments.  RC1, RC2, 
and RC3 sources may 
choose to pay their annual 
fees in quarterly 
installments by indicating 
so on the first invoice 
received and remitting 
payment of the first 
installment to the Agency 
along with the duplicate 
copy of the invoice.  
Quarterly installments shall 
be equal to 25% of the total 
annual registration fee and 
shall be due within 30 days 
of each quarter following 
initial assessment by the 
Agency.

Totals: $6,124.00 $2,500.00

32



Industrial / Commercial Air Permits
Pending and Final Permits for period from 10/05/2018 to 11/08/2018

Facility_Name City Description Application 
Received

Facility 
Category

EngType NOC_No Date of Status 
Update

Status

COVABRELLI 
COFFEE LLC

TUMWATE
R

install coffee 
roaster

9/21/2018Coffee Roasting AMNOC 18NOC1303 10/10/2018hand off to Debbie for final 
paymnet

COVABRELLI 
COFFEE LLC

TUMWATE
R

install coffee 
roaster

9/21/2018Coffee Roasting AMNOC 18NOC1303 10/10/2018final permit delivered

CROWN CORK & 
SEAL CO INC

OLYMPIA run a trial of inside 
spray BPAni 
PPG2012825 and 
Aqualure G1 50 
214680

10/9/2018Manufacturing JADNOI 18NOI1306 10/18/2018final permit delivered

PEPSI NORTHWEST 
BEVERAGES LLC

TUMWATE
R

replace boiler 8/21/2018Food 
Processing

LEWNOC 18NOC1293 11/8/2018final permit delivered

ALTA FOREST 
PRODUCTS

SHELTON use oil stain 9/20/2018Lumber Mill - 
Logging

AMNOC 18NOC1302 11/6/2018initial payment received, hand off 
to engineers

AQUATIC CO YELM incorporate 
conditions from 
17NOC1256

6/1/2018Fiberglass/Mari
ne Services

MVGRFC 18RFC1287 7/20/2018draft in progress

ARCO 7063 OLYMPIA correct 16NOC1149 10/4/2018Gasoline 
Distribution

LEWADM 18ADM1305 10/11/2018draft pending internal review

ASCENSUS 
SPECIALTY 

ELMA renew AOP 11/4/2015Chemicals JADAOP 15AOP1134 6/28/2018draft in progress

BELCO SHELTON 
MILL

SHELTON install a cyclone 7/26/2018Wood Products LEWNOC 18NOC1294 11/1/2018incomplete application - waiting 
on data response

BHP BILLITON 
CANADA INC

HOQUIAM establish a potash 
terminal

9/20/2018Chemicals AMNOC 18NOC1301 10/30/2018draft pending internal review

CAPITOL CITY PRESS TUMWATE
R

get approval for 
after-the-fact 
installation of 
printing presses

9/19/2014Printing/Paper 
Products

LEWNOC 14NOC1064 10/5/2018draft pending internal review

Thursday, November 8, 2018 Page 1 of 4



Facility_Name City Description Application 
Received

Facility 
Category

EngType NOC_No Date of Status 
Update

Status

CEDAR CREEK 
CORRECTIONS

LITTLEROC
K

modify conditions 
in approval order

1/28/2016Corrections 
Center

AMMOD 16MOD1143 10/19/2016on hold - per source

CONTANDA 
TERMINALS LLC

HOQUIAM install storage tanks 
and vapor 
combustion units

12/1/2014Chemicals AMNOC 14NOC1074 1/13/2016waiting on SEPA

FOX LUMBER CO MONTESA
NO

after-the-fact 
review of cyclone

8/1/2017Lumber Mill - 
Logging

LEWNOC 17NOC1242 9/10/2018draft pending internal review

GRAYS HARBOR 
COUNTY - 

MONTESA
NO

install spray booth 
(after-the-fact)

11/25/2015Gasoline 
Distribution

AMNOC 15NOC1138 12/8/2016on hold - per source

GRAYS HARBOR 
ENERGY LLC

ELMA Air Operating 
Permit - Initial

4/24/2009Energy 
Production

MVGAOP 09AOP672 7/20/2018on hold - waiting on another 
agency

HARPO LLC ABERDEEN replace existing 
boiler with new 6.3 
MMBtu/hr natural 
gas boiler (after-
the-fact)

4/2/2018Printing/Paper 
Products

LEWNOC 18NOC1275 8/20/2018incomplete application - waiting 
on data response

HARPO LLC ABERDEEN replace existing 
boiler with new 6.3 
MMBtu/hr natural 
gas boiler (after-
the-fact)

4/2/2018Printing/Paper 
Products

LEWNOC 18NOC1275 8/20/2018draft in progress

McKINLEY PAPER 
COMPANY

PORT 
ANGELES

renew AOP 
(11AOP816)

9/4/2018Printing/Paper 
Products

MVGAOP 18AOP1300 9/6/2018

METAUX SPECIAUX HOQUIAM build a sodium 
methylate plant

4/10/2017closed/non-
registered

MVGNOC 16NOC1191 7/20/2018on hold - per source

MUTUAL 
MATERIALS - LACEY

LACEY  after-the-fact 
paver stone tumbler

9/6/2017Concrete 
Batch Plant

LEWNOC 17NOC1237 6/1/2018waiting on SEPA

NORTHWEST AQUA 
SOILS

ELMA operate a compost 
facility

1/28/2016Composting AMNOC 16NOC1146 10/21/2016on hold - per source

PORT ANGELES 
HARDWOOD LLC

PORT 
ANGELES

modify condition 1 8/8/2017Wood Products AMMOD 17MOD1243 9/6/2017incomplete application - waiting 
on data response

Thursday, November 8, 2018 Page 2 of 4



Facility_Name City Description Application 
Received

Facility 
Category

EngType NOC_No Date of Status 
Update

Status

RESURRECTION 
AUTO BODY AND 

OLYMPIA install after-the-fact 
spray booth

9/12/2017Automotive 
Services

AMNOC 17NOC1251 9/13/2017on hold - pending initial payment

RT LONDON CO LACEY install cefla 
automated finish 
line

10/5/2018Furniture/Cabi
net Shops

AMNOC 18NOC1304 11/6/2018initial payment received, hand off 
to engineers

SETINA MFG CO - 
YELM HWY

OLYMPIA establish metal 
fabrication facility 
including welding, 
metal cutting, and 
abrasive blasting 
(after-the-fact)

3/28/2018Metal 
Fabrication/Co
ating

AMNOC 18NOC1274 11/7/2018draft pending internal review

SIERRA PACIFIC 
INDUSTRIES - 

ABERDEEN renew AOP permit 1/11/2012Lumber Mill - 
Logging

AMAOP 12AOP873 1/24/2018draft in progress

TACC TUMWATE
R

install after-the-fact 
spray booth

9/26/2017Automotive 
Services

AMNOC 17NOC1255 12/11/2017on hold - waiting on another 
agency

VALLEY NUT & 
BOLT CO INC

OLYMPIA operate hot dip zinc 
galvanizing facility

11/8/2018Metal 
Fabrication/Co

JADNOC 18NOC1307 11/8/2018draft in progress

VALLEY NUT & 
BOLT CO INC

OLYMPIA operate hot dip zinc 
galvanizing facility

11/8/2018Metal 
Fabrication/Co

JADNOC 18NOC1307 11/8/2018initial payment received, hand off 
to engineers

WESTPORT LLC WESTPORT renew AOP 3/7/2014Fiberglass/Mari
ne Services

JADAOP 14AOP1029 11/8/2018draft in progress

WESTPORT LLC WESTPORT modify #07AOP575 
to remove 
conditions 4.18 and 
6.12 and 
incorporate 
requirements from 
40 CFR Part 63 
Subpart II.

9/3/2009Fiberglass/Mari
ne Services

JADREV 09REV702 11/8/2018draft in progress

WESTPORT LLC - 
INTERIOR - 1050 
BUILDING

PORT 
ANGELES

Establishment of a 
park bench painting 
facility.

8/7/2018Furniture/Cabi
net Shops

LEWNOC 18NOC1297 10/25/2018on hold - per source

Thursday, November 8, 2018 Page 3 of 4



Facility_Name City Description Application 
Received

Facility 
Category

EngType NOC_No Date of Status 
Update

Status

WEYERHAEUSER 
NR RAYMOND 

RAYMOND renew 04AOP387 8/1/2012Lumber Mill - 
Logging

AMAOP 12AOP915 10/15/2018draft pending internal review

Thursday, November 8, 2018 Page 4 of 4



Air Quality Monitoring Summary

October 2018

Odelle Hadley, PhD



2018 October Air Quality Summary – PM2.5

2.3 6.0 10.9 31

0.5 3.2 8.3 25

2.1 7.0 17.1 28 3

4.5 9.8 17.1 28 3

3.6 6.6 12.3 31

2.7 8.6 24 25 6

1.3 5.3 12.9 31

Minimum
Maximum G

O

O

D

M

O

D

U

S

G

Average

Aberdeen

Cheeka Peak1

Lacey

Port Angeles

Port Townsend

Shelton

South Bend

U

H

V

U

H

1) Fault in power lines caused several days without power at Cheeka Peak



Thurston County Ozone
O

zo
ne

 (P
PB

)

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40



Monitoring Activities

Odelle

– Community Toxics Grant

• Support student monitoring 
efforts

• Meeting with students (lab 
update)

– Cheeka Peak site audit with 
Ecology

– Presented UFP results to 
the Clallam County joint 
meeting of Commissioners 
and Port Commissioners

Nick

– Quality checks

• Shelton

– Mason Co Saturation 
study

• Installed first sat study 
monitor at the current 
Shelton air quality 
monitoring station

• Discovered hardware  
incompatibility problem

• New parts are on order



Contact

Odelle Hadley, Ph.D., Senior Monitoring Specialist

360-539-7610 x105

odelle.hadley@orcaa.org

https://www.orcaa.org



���������	
����������������

�����������	
��������������������������� ��!!�"�#�����$�%&'(�)����� *+����$,-../012�34�5678�9:;�<9=>>�?>�@ABCDEF�0;GE?4�HA;=4�/EI�/G;4FB�J@0H//KL�=9�9:;�MEI;F9E?4�?>�9:;�N?=IM�?>�OEI;F9?I<�JN?=IMKL�M;P;A?D;M�=�4;Q�,9I=9;GEF�RA=4�9?�GSEM;�=G;4FB�?D;I=9E?4<T�@0H//�FI;=9;M�9:E<�RA=4�=<�=�MB4=CEF�M?FSC;49L�9?�;<9=UAE<:�GSEM;AE4;<�>?I�?4VG?E4G�DI?GI=C<�=<�Q;AA�=<�9EC;VAECE9;M�=F9EPE9E;<�=4M�GI=49<T�W:;�RA=4�Q=<�ECDA;C;49;M�=9�9:;�<9=I9�?>�XE<F=A�1;=I�567Y�JX1567YK�Q:EF:�U;G=4�ZSAB�7L�5678T�-4M;I�9:;�DA=4L�@0H//�<9=>>�QEAA�DI;<;49�9:;�N?=IM�QE9:�[S=I9;IAB�SDM=9;<�?4�,9I=9;GEF�RA=4�?U\;F9EP;<T/<�>?I�]?PT�7L�5678L�@0H//�:=<�A=S4F:;M�4;Q�E4E9E=9;<�=4M�F?49E4S;M�;̂E<9E4G�DI?GI=C<�E4�=FF?IM=4F;�QE9:�9:;�RA=4L�=<�?S9AE4;M�U;A?Q�S4M;I�;=F:�?>�9:;�;<9=UAE<:;M�,9I=9;GEF�H?I;�H?4F;D9<T�'_ $̀!����+�a#�*�$+��b*�c���+��d�!������$e�f�e�����+���$��*���� ����*�$!g W:E<�E<�=�F?49E4S=A�DI?F;<<T�/<�?>�9:;�;4M�?>�h7L�X1567YL�9:;I;�=I;4i9�=4B�4;Q�X;M;I=A�0;GSA=9E?4<�?I�I?AAU=Fj<�E4�DA=F;�k�=AA�DI?D?<;M�F:=4G;<�=I;�U;E4G�AE9EG=9;M�=4M�:=P;�4?9�U;;4�ECDA;C;49;MT�l;�=I;�C?4E9?IE4G�=AA�9:;�D?9;49E=A�mR/�I?AA�U=Fj�D?AEFE;<�=4M�DI?PEME4G�F?CC;49<�9:I?SG:�]/H//L�9:;�4=9E?4=A�FA;=4�=EI�=<<?FE=9E?4Tg W:;�/EI�.?4E9?IE4G�<;F9E?4�A=S4F:;M�9:;�4;Q�mR/V>S4M;M�H?CCS4E9B�W?̂EF<�RI?\;F9T�W:E<�DI?\;F9�>;=9SI;<�D=I94;I<:ED<�QE9:�mP;IGI;;4�,9=9;�H?AA;G;�=4M�mR/T�/<�?>�h7L�<9SM;49<�=I;�U;GE44E4G�9?�A;=I4�0�<9=9E<9EF=A�=4=AB<E<�DI?GI=C�>?I�=4=ABnE4G�?SI�M=9=�<;9T�W:E<�QEAA�=AA?Q�=4=AB<E<�=4M�I;D?I9�QIE9E4G�9?�U;GE4�E4�Z=4S=IB�567Yg ,9=>>�F?CDA;9;M�76o�E4<D;F9E?4�MSIE4G�h7L�Q:EF:�E<�9:;�US<E;<9�[S=I9;I�?>�9:;�B;=IT�,;P;4�/@R�=4M�>EP;�<B49:;9EF�CE4?I�E4<D;F9E?4<�Q;I;�F?CDA;9;MTg ,?SIF;�9;<9E4G�Q=<�?U<;IP;M�=9�pI=B<�q=IU?I�m4;IGBL�,E;II=�R=FE>EF�34MS<9IE;<k/U;IM;;4L�=4M�,R3k,:;A9?4T%_ ���a����� �$+��r*!*s*�*����$e�+�$�*$���!���$ �c�$*$ �+�aa�$*���#���$��!c*#!g @0H//�<9=>>�DI?PEM;M�E4>?IC=9E?4�=U?S9�Om0/�>S4M<�9?�W:SI<9?4�349;IFE9B�WI=4<E9�>?I�US<�I;DA=F;C;49�>S4ME4G�E4�F?4\S4F9E?4�QE9:�tl�D;4=A9B�>S4M<T�g ,9=>>�=A<?�DI?PEM;M�E4>?IC=9E?4�9?�=AA�D?I9<�E4�@0H//�I;GE?4�=U?S9�Om0/�=4M�tl�D;4=A9B�>S4ME4G�?DD?I9S4E9E;<T�W:;�m̂;FS9EP;�OEI;F9?I�=A<?�C;9�QE9:�9:;�R?I9�?>�R?I9�W?Q4<;4M�9?�9=Aj�=U?S9�:?Q�9?�F?AA;F9EP;AB�C=4=G;�;CE<<E?4<�G;4;I=9;M�UB�=F9EPE9E;<�M;=AE4G�QE9:�U?=9�C=E49;4=4F;�=4M�I;D=EIT��



���������	
����������������

� �������������� !"����"��#�$!#�%&��'��$"���'�!(�&"�!'(�'"�'�!����� �#�"������"���$!"�����&#�')��������������� !"����"��*!+��,&'- !��.!��"��!�$��$� /!�0�123�!(�&"�'! ��'&(%�$"')� 24,335'�$�  &��$!"���'�'�$"���� !���6����' �+��/��'��"!"���'�"��0�&"-�7��&/'����8-&�'"���!���.!'���,�&�"��')� .�"�6�"-�!�1���'/��"9!��!�123�!���'-!�����&"�����(&����7���7&#!"��������� !"���)�:&���7�"-��/��'��"!"���;�'"!���-�#/�������"��0�!#"���!"���'�"��(&����7��/"���'�����"-��$�  &��"0)� ,�  &��$!"���'�!���<8�="!�������#�/���'����!#���6�6�(9(!'�����"���!$�'�"��'"���7"-���'�$�!#� ���!�/��7�! '�!���� /���������$"��&"��!$-�"����'����"'�!���$���$�7��&/')� ="!���/!�"�$�/!"������"-��8-&�'"���,�&�"0�>����,-���5'� ��"��7����=�/"� (���!���"-��8-&�'"���,�&�"0�,������!"���� ��"��7'����3&7&'"�!���=�/"� (��)�?@ ABCDECFG�ECHIGJKECL�DMG�GNNGHDEOGCGKK�JCP�GNNEHEGCHQ�BN�RGISED�RIBLIJSK� ="!���6��+���6�"-�"-��T!'-��7"���3���:���$"��'�U��&/;�T!'-��7"���:�/!�" ��"����V$�#�70�WV$�#�70X�!���"-��Y!"���!#�3''�$�!"�������,#�!��3���37��$��'�WY3,33X�"��/�� �"��!�$��'�'"��"� �''!7��!(�&"�!���Z&!#�"0�!���-�!#"-�� /!$"'��&���7�� /!�����!���Z&!#�"0�!'�!���'&#"����6�#������'�"-�'�'&  ��)� 24,335'���7������'�$"����/!�"�$�/!"������!� ��"��7����"-��T!'-��7"������ �"�T��"��'�U��&/�!���!����''����''&�'������"���'"�!���$��$����"��24,33;���$#&��[\ ]'�����3���,&�"!���:���$�'����$��%&�$"����6�"-��&"�����(&����7�!$"���"��'\ ]/�!"���U!'�="!"������� �""��7�/�!$"�$�'_̂ ABCDECFG�KJNGLFJIPECL�JLGCHQ�JKKGDK� 4����6�!���!//��������!�$�!#�'"!"� ��"';�!##�$��"�!$"'�!���!$$�&�"'�/!0!(#�� ��"��7�'"!"��!��������!#���Z&��� ��"')� <��"-�����'"�Z&!�"������"-�'���'$!#�0�!�;�"-��(�!���!//����������'���/��!#"0�6��+'-��"'�����=�#���>&�#�̀&����7�:���$�'�!���2&"�����&̀����7)� <���'"�7!"��7�-�!"��7�'0'"� �����"-��7!�!7��"��!�"')��,��"�!$"�������/��/��"0�$#�!��&/�!��� !��"��!�$�)� 3������6�����!"!�����>a�bcde9bcdf�0��#����"-����##�6��7���'&#"')g >���4�7�'"�!"���;�"-��!���!7�������&��6!'�hiec;ffj�!���"-���k/��'�'�6����hild;dmj�����!���������$�����hWic;bldX)�8-����������$���'�6�"-���dc�/��$��"����"-�������&�)g >���!'(�'"�';�"-��!���!7�������&��6!'�hdim;nbd�!���"-���k/��'�'�6����hdni;nel�����!�'!���7'����hde;cjf)�8-����������$���'�6�"-���db�/��$��"����"-�������&�)



���������	
����������������

� �������������� �!�"#�� �!$�%&���'���!����'��#��(�)�*+,$-.-�����%&���/0��)�)�(����*12$21.3�4&���/0��)�)�����( %& ��1,�0�����%��5�%&����'��#�3� 6/0��)�)�5������&��5�%&�)��0��!��7)��#� �!�%&��5 �)%�%(��8#��%��)��5��9�+,1-������/0��%���%��"����(���%&���(�)�"#�!�%��3:; <==>?@=�?AB�>C=?DA�EDFE�GH?ID=J�K=?LLM N#� �!�O1$�����P�70� �����)%�55��%%������%&��)�7 Q���#���R7�S��R�&����%�� � �!3�R%�55���)������ '���T�U(�00���%�� � �!3M P�70� �����)%�55�0��% � 0�%��� ��7��% �!)�( %&�%&��V�)& �!%���R%�%��W ��O#�� %X�P�70� �����Y��#0�%����)#������) )%��� �)��������0���% ���"�%(����0��!��7)3M Z[PWW�)����X���%��(�)�0��' ����%��"�%&�R0�S����P�����W ��W!���X�����R�#%&(�)%�P�����W ��W!���X�5���%&� ��)����X�)#�'�X)3�[�)#�%)��5�%&�)��)#�'�X)�( ���"��)&�����( %&�Z[PWW�������'� ��"��3M Z[PWW�W�7 � )%��% ���)%�55����% �#�)�%��7�� %��������&��!�)�%��%&���!���X\)�"���5 %�0���)��)�0��' ����"X�W))�� �% ����5�V�)& �!%���P % �)�]WVP̂3�Z[PWW�_������00��'���0���)�%����'���%&���70��X�����)%�%��%&��R%�%�\)���(���7 �X�̀�� �������'��W�%3M 4&��Z[PWW�W ��̀�� %�� �!�)��% ����%%������%&��a�% �����W ��`�� %�� �!�P��5�����������%&��W ��R��)��)�b�%����% �����P��5������� R%�55�7����'��#�"������%��%)�5���!�%% �!�����))�%������&�#��X�7�%������! ���� �5��7�% ���5��7�V��%&���c����!��#��3� N#� �!�%&�����5������)$�Z[PWW�)%�55�0��% � 0�%��� ��� )�#)) ��)��"�#%$������'��#�% ��)��5$���(�� % U��Q�0���%���� ��7�� %�� �!���' ��)�)#�&��)�d#�0���W �3�


	1-November14-2018BoardAgenda
	2a-BoardMinutesOctober10-2018-draft
	2b-ExpendituresDisbursements
	3-ReviewPenaltyWorksheets-AsbestosandDemolition
	4-10YearLook-EmployeeChanges
	5-FederalRegulation-adopt-by-reference
	6-Resolution2018-277-SmallPublicWorksandConstultants
	7-ComplianceProgramUpdate
	8-EngineeringProgramUpdate
	9-AirQualityProgramUpdate
	�Air Quality Monitoring Summary��October 2018��
	2018 October Air Quality Summary – PM2.5
	Thurston County Ozone
	 Monitoring Activities
	 Contact

	10-2018-StrategicPlan-QuarterlyReport



